Calendar Creator™ Version 5.0 User's Guide

The Learning Company, Inc. One Athenaeum Street Cambridge, MA 02142

THE LEARNING COMPANY LICENSE AGREEMENT

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING TERMS CAREFULLY BEFORE USING THIS PROGRAM.

This Agreement governs your use of the The Learning Company products enclosed with it including any manuals, disks, computer program and materials associated with it (the "Software"). BY OPENING THE SEALED PACKAGES CONTAINING THE DISKS AND/OR BY USING THE SOFTWARE, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, PROMPTLY RETURN THE UNOPENED DISK PACKAGES TO THE PLACE YOU OBTAINED THEM FOR A FULL REFUND.

1. **Grant of License.** This Agreement permits you to use one copy of the Software, which is licensed as a single product. The Software is "in use" on a computer when it is loaded into the temporary memory (i.e., RAM) or installed into the permanent memory (e.g., hard disk or other storage device) of that computer. You may use the Software on a network provided you have purchased one copy for each user.

2. **Copyright and Restrictions.** The Software is owned by The Learning Company, Inc. or its suppliers and is protected by United States and Canadian copyright laws and international treaty provisions. The Learning Company, Inc. retains all rights not expressly granted. You must treat the Software like any other copyrighted material, except that you may either make one copy of the Software solely for backup or archival purposes or transfer the Software to a single hard disk provided you keep the original solely for backup or archival purposes. You may not rent or lease the Software, but you may transfer your rights under this Agreement on a permanent basis provided you transfer the license granted by this Agreement, the Software and all associated printed materials, retain no copies and the recipient agrees to the terms of this Agreement. You may not reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble the Software, except to the extent the foregoing restriction is expressly prohibited by applicable law.

3. Limited Warranty. For 90 days from your date of purchase, The Learning Company, Inc. warrants that the media on which the Software is distributed are free from defects in materials and workmanship. The Learning Company, Inc. will, at its option, refund the amount you paid for the Software or repair or replace the Software provided that (a) the defective Software is returned to The Learning Company, Inc. or an authorized dealer within 90 days from the date of purchase and (b) you have completed and returned the enclosed registration card. These are your sole remedies for any breach of warranty. The Learning Company, Inc. disclaims all other warranties, either express or implied, with respect to the Software and the accompanying written materials, including but not limited to implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.

4. Limitation of Liabilities. In no event will The Learning Company, Inc. be liable for any indirect, special, incidental, economic or consequential damages arising out of the use or inability to use the Software, even if The Learning Company, Inc. has been advised of the possibility of such damages. In no event will The Learning Company, Inc.'s liability exceed the amount paid by you for the Software. Because some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion or limitation of liability for consequential or incidental damages, the above limitation may not apply to you.

5. **U.S. Government Restricted Rights.** The Software is are provided with RESTRICTED RIGHTS. Use, duplication or disclosure by the Government is subject to restrictions as set forth in subparagraph (c)(1)(ii) of the Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software clause at DFARS 252.227-7013 or subparagraphs (c)(1) and (2) of the Commercial Computer Software—Restricted Rights at 48 CFR 52.227 - 19, as applicable. Manufacturer is The Learning Company, Inc. International Inc., 201 Broadway, Cambridge, MA 02139

Note to Users

End users may print and sell hard copies (not electronic copies) of the calendars as long as the following notice appears: "Calendar created with *Calendar Creator 5.0* ©1997 The Learning Company, Inc."

© 1997 TLC Properties Inc., a subsidiary of The Learning Company, Inc., and its licensors. All rights reserved. The Learning Company is a registered trademark and *Calendar Creator* and *Creative Office* are trademarks of TLC Properties Inc. A portion of the images © 1995– 1997 Produktum AB, Sweden, © 1997 DeMorgan Industries Corp., makers of WebSpice[™], © 1996–1997 Toon-a-Day, © 1996–1997 TnT Designs, and © 1995–1997 GraphicCorp. 3Com is a registered trademark and PalmPilot is a trademark of 3Com Corporation or its subsidiaries. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Table of Contents

1 Welcome to Calendar Creator

WHAT'S NEW IN CALENDAR CREATOR	1.1
FEATURES OF CALENDAR CREATOR	1.3
HOW TO USE THIS MANUAL	1.4
Typographical Conventions	1.4
Key Names and Combinations	1.5
Finding Help!	1.5
USEFUL TERMS AND DEFINITIONS	1.6

2 Getting Started

2.1
2.2
2.2
2.7
2.8
2.8
2.9

3 Creating Your Calendar

CREATING A NEW CALENDAR FILE	3.1
Selecting Your Calendar "View"	3.1
Applying a QuickStyle™	3.5
CUSTOMIZING YOUR CALENDAR'S APPEARANCE	3.7
Formatting Features	3.7
Adding Pictures and Drawing Objects	3.7
Adding Clip Art	3.11
Adding Text to Your Calendar	3.13
Applying Text Functions	
Adding Notes to Your Calendar	
Adding Date Objects	3.23
Determining Layer Orders	
Changing Your Calendar's Start Day	3.26
CREATING AND SAVING MULTIPLE CALENDARS	3.26
Defining the View Properties	
Saving Your Calendar File	3.31
Interaction Between Your Calendar and Event Lists	3.31
CREATING A CUSTOM VIEW	3.32

4 Adding Events to Your Calendar

ACCESSING THE EVENT LIST	4.1
Creating and Maintaining Event Categories	4.2
Adding Events to Your Event List	
Adding Styles to Events	4.14
Associating Pictures with Your Events	4.17
Applying Functions to Events	4.19
Attaching Notes to Events	4.20
Setting the Alarm to Accompany Events	4.21
Sorting Your Event List	4.23
Querying Your Event List	4.24
USING THE SCHEDULER TO ACTIVATE YOUR ALARMS .	4.25

5 Using the Address Book

ACCESSING THE ADDRESS BOOK	. 5.1
Adding Contacts to Your Address List	. 5.2
Creating Groups	5.10
Sending E-Mail	5.12
Setting Your Address Book Options	5.12
Sorting Your Address Book	5.15
Searching Your Address Book	5.16
Importing Files into Your Address Book	5.18

6 Printing Your Calendar

PREPARING TO PRINT	6.1
Print Layout	6.2
Print Options	6.8
Print Preview	6.12
PRINTING YOUR CALENDAR	6.13
Printing on Custom Paper Sizes	6.13
Event List Printing	6.14
Address Book Printing	6.14
Printing Event Reports	6.14
Print Wizard	6.14

Appendix

TROUBLESHOOTING	A.1
TECHNICAL SUPPORT	A.1
CUSTOMER SERVICE	A.2
INDEX	A.3

Welcome to Calendar Creator™

Calendar Creator is the most powerful calendar creating and scheduling software available today! This fun and easy-to-use program now gives you the ability to completely personalize your calendar by providing endless formatting options that include hundreds of fonts; color, border, and shading options; free movement of all calendar cells; seven calendar layouts; hundreds of graphics; and a variety of printing options that let you decide how your calendar should be laid out. In addition, *Calendar Creator* now provides you with an electronic Address Book where you can store all of your business and personal contact information, and a fully functional Event List where you can add and maintain all of your scheduled events.

These new features, along with the many outstanding features that have already made *Calendar Creator* the world's most popular program year after year, give you the ability to create unique, professional-quality calendars that will help you to stay on schedule and stay organized.

What's New in Calendar Creator

Calendar Creator has a new look, quicker methods of entering events on your calendar, and many more enhancements to give you the most powerful and versatile calendar-creating program ever. The following list highlights some of these enhancements and new features.

Address Book

- ✓ enables you to keep your important numbers and addresses close to your schedule
- ✓ can be used to send e-mail to people listed in your Address Book
- \checkmark can be used to direct-dial numbers on your Address Book
- ✓ can be customized to list only specific information in your Address list screen
- ✓ provides several ways of sorting and searching your Address Book
- ✓ can associate people listed in your Address Book into a group, such as a softball team, e-mail the entire group at once

Calendars

- ✓ allow all cells and fields to be set as "moveable" and placed anywhere on your screen
- ✓ allow new color and font options, including special effects
- \checkmark allow new border and shading options
- \checkmark allow new graphics that can be placed anywhere on your calendar
- \checkmark can create individual calendars for specific needs
- \checkmark allow multiple calendars to be stored in one easy to retrieve file

Event Lists

- \checkmark allow event information to be entered directly into your Event List
- \checkmark categorize events according to your needs
- \checkmark sort events in a variety of ways
- ✓ allow you to add event notes, which are indicated on both your Event List and your calendar by a note-like icon
- \checkmark allow event participants to be selected from your Address Book

Printing

- ✓ includes the Print Wizard feature to assist you in setting up print layouts
- ✓ allows easier poster and InstaBook[™] printing
- \checkmark can specify the size of your calendar(s) on a page
- \checkmark can specify the time period to be included in your printed calendar
- \checkmark can print graphics with your calendar

Miscellaneous

- \checkmark can change your screen view at the click of one button
- \checkmark can modify your graphics using the Clip Art screen
- \checkmark can share calendars over a network
- \checkmark includes password protection to control shared information
- ✓ works with US Robotics PalmPilot[™]
- \checkmark can import or export event or address files
- \checkmark can link and update linked event files

Features of Calendar Creator

Calendar Creator has more capabilities than any other calendar program. The following is a listing of some of these features.

- You can fully customize your calendars by adding shading, borders, pictures, and various fonts.
- You can add pictures and special effects.
- It offers multiple printing options including single calendar on multiple pages, multiple calendars on a single page, and double-sided InstaBook pages.
- It allows you to determine the time span of your calendar (from one day to multiple years).
- It allows several calendars to be stored in a single file and be given individual names.
- It offers seven basic calendar layouts including; day, weekly planner, week, multi-week, month, multi-month, year, and multi-year.
- You can print calendars on a variety of paper sizes and stocks.
- The printing options let you decide how many calendars to print per page and the time span of each printed calendar.
- It offers InstaBook printing, which creates a small booklet-type calendar.
- It has split-screen window options that allow you to view your calendar and Event List simultaneously.
- You can track repeated events for days, months, and years and indicate any exceptions to the repeat.
- It includes several pre-made Event Lists such as, the list of holidays, quotes of the day, and Hollywood stars' birthdays.
- It has over 5,000 clip art pictures.

How to Use this Manual

This manual is designed to provide easy-to-follow and easy-to-find information on how to use *Calendar Creator*. It is written with the general assumption that you are familiar with the basic operation of Windows. Therefore, it does not explain features that are common to Windows-based programs. If you are unfamiliar with Windows, please refer to your Microsoft[®] Windows[®] User's Guide and familiarize yourself with the general terminology, layout, and navigation of the Windows operating system. Understanding and being comfortable with Windows is essential to learning and fully utilizing the features of *Calendar Creator*.

This manual is composed of the following chapters.

- Chapter 1, Welcome to *Calendar Creator*, provides an overall introduction to *Calendar Creator*.
- Chapter 2, Getting Started, explains how to load your new software, as well as the general terminology used in this manual and the layouts of the main *Calendar Creator* screens.
- Chapter 3, Creating Your Calendar, explains how to select your calendar's time span, how to add style to your calendar, and how to store your calendars.
- Chapter 4, Adding Events to Your Calendar, explains how to use Event Lists to manage your scheduled events.
- Chapter 5, Using the Address Book, explains how to record personal and business contacts, as well as link these contacts to your calendar's events.
- Chapter 6, Printing Your Calendars, explains how to setup the printing options to print single-page and multi-page calendars, as well as InstaBooks[™].

Typographical Conventions

Here are a few useful notes about the terms, typographical conventions, and symbols used in this manual. The following symbols indicate the specific nature of the text that immediately follows the symbol.

- This solid bullet indicates general list information.
- - This checkbox symbol indicates instructional information. This actionoriented text is set in a different font than other text and usually requires you to interact with *Calendar Creator* using the keyboard or mouse.



This pencil symbolizes highlighted notes, helpful hints, and strategies for using the software.



Key Names and Combinations

The names of keys and onscreen function buttons are set in SMALL CAPITAL LETTERS. For example, ESCAPE, ENTER, OK. Some key names on your keyboard may be represented a little differently.

Calendar Creator is a Windows-based program. Thus, it is designed to work using either the keyboard or the mouse. Instructions in this manual typically assume that you are using the mouse to make your selections from menus, dialog boxes, etc. However, most actions can be performed using the keyboard only. You'll notice on all of the menus that one letter is underlined in each menu item. Pressing the **ALT** key on your keyboard while simultaneously typing this underlined letter will allow you to select that item. You can also use the arrow keys on your keyboard to move up or down and left or right in lists.

The right-mouse button is often used in *Calendar Creator* to provide quick access to certain functions such as cut, paste, properties, etc.

Finding Help!

Calendar Creator provides online Help for each major function and for many of the controls and individual fields. There are three levels of Help.

- The first level is the most basic and provides help for general Windows commands and for the major functions of *Calendar Creator*. It is accessed from the **Help** main menu located at the top of your screen, or by selecting the Help icon (2) on the main toolbar.
- The second level provides basic information on specific screens and dialog boxes for *Calendar Creator*. It is accessed by selecting the HELP button that appears on most screens and dialog boxes.
- The third level provides detailed information for specific fields and keys on the dialog boxes and screens. It is accessed by selecting the question mark icon (?) that appears in the top-right corner of most dialog boxes and screens.

Useful Terms and Definitions

Calendar Cells	All calendars are comprised of many different cells. Each cell can contain its own format settings, text, and graphics.
Calendar View	In <i>Calendar Creator</i> , this term refers to the time periods presented by a calendar. Examples of calendar views include Year, Month, Multi-Month, Week, Multi-Week, Week Planner, and Day.
Drawing Object	Graphic cells that can be added to your calendar in the form of various shapes. Pictures can be added to these cells—sized and moved as you wish.
Event List	Customized lists containing the events and their information that are marked on your calendar(s).
Event View	One of the views offered by <i>Calendar Creator</i> . This view shows only the events belonging to the active calendar.
InstaBook™	A printing option that automatically determines the placement of multiple calendars on a page so that when cut, folded, and stapled, a booklet-type calendar is produced.
Moveable Cells	Calendar Cells that can be moved anywhere on your calendar screen. Calendar Cells are set as moveable using the "Moveable" field on the Style tab.
QuickStyles™	Pre-formatted calendar styles that are based on a specific theme such as Art Deco, Hollywood, Christmas, etc. QuickStyles can also be user-defined to save your favorite calendar creations.
Text Boxes	Cells that are added to calendars specifically to contain text.

Getting Started

Installing *Calendar Creator* is a quick and easy process. Simply follow the instructions provided on your screen as you are loading this software, to ensure that it is properly installed. This will help to avoid application problems in the future. *Calendar Creator* is designed to run on a personal computer that meets or exceeds the following system requirements.

- Microsoft[®] Windows[®] 95/NT installed and running
- 486 processor, 33 MHz
- double-speed CD-ROM drive (or better)
- 8MB of RAM (16MB recommended)
- 256 color video card, thousands of colors recommended (16 bit)

Installing Calendar Creator

Calendar Creator can be installed using the AutoRun feature that is automatically activated when you insert the CD-ROM into your computer's drive. Simply follow the onscreen instructions to successfully install *Calendar Creator*. Remember to **register** your copy of *Calendar Creator* in order to receive notification of updates and new releases, access technical support, and get information about other software available from The Learning Company.

- □ Insert the Calendar Creator CD-ROM into your CD-ROM drive.
- □ The start-up mode will be automatically initiated. If it fails, position the cursor on the Start icon in the Task Bar, then click the mouse button once. Select the Run option from the menu.

You will see a dialog box similar to the one shown below.

Run	? ×
2	Type the name of a program, folder, or document, and Windows will open it for you.
<u>O</u> pen:	sysedit
	OK Cancel Browse

Run Dialog Box

Type in **D:\SETUP.EXE**, where D represents the letter for your CD-ROM drive. Click on the oκ button.

The system will begin installing *Calendar Creator*. Follow the onscreen instructions. During installation, you are given the opportunity to install *all* of *Calendar Creator* or just various *portions* that you need. If you are limited by the amount of space available on your hard drive, you may want to refrain from loading and storing the clip art that is included with this software. These can still be accessed when needed by inserting your *Calendar Creator* CD-ROM in your drive.

You are also given the opportunity to install *Calendar Creator* in the default directory (C:\...\Creative Office*Calendar Creator*) or select another directory. Use the Browse feature to select another directory, if desired.

Once *Calendar Creator* in successfully loaded on your computer, you will be given the option to restart Windows. You must restart Windows before using *Calendar Creator*. Once restarted, the *Calendar Creator* icon will appear in the **Start** menu under "Creative Office."

□ Select Programs from the Start menu on your task bar. Then, select the *Calendar Creator* option from the Creative Office item.

To register your Calendar Creator program later:

Double-click on the *Register* icon in the "Creative Office" folder on your hard drive and follow the onscreen instructions using Tab to move from field to field.

The Basics

When you access *Calendar Creator*, the default calendar will be in view. Before you begin to use this calendar, continue reading to familiarize yourself with the basics of the *Calendar Creator* desktop environment.

Screen Definitions for Calendar Creator

Upon opening *Calendar Creator* for the first time (and any time thereafter when you create a *new* calendar), you will see the default initial view of *Calendar Creator* (shown labeled in the following figure). This default view is the Month calendar view. As you customize your calendar and record your events, this initial screen will probably no longer resemble your actual calendar(s).



Definition of Typical Calendar Creator Screen

The commands and controls that allow you to manipulate *Calendar Creator* are listed in either the Main Menu or are accessed using the Toolbar buttons that appear on your screen underneath the main menu. Each of these is discussed below.

MAIN MENU HEADINGS

The Main Menu located at the top of your *Calendar Creator* screen contains the following menu items: File, Edit, View, Calendar, Events, Address, Window, and Help. Each of these main items contains various submenus that are accessed by a drop-down list. Submenus are accessed by clicking on the main menu item using the mouse or by pressing the ALT key while at the same time typing the underlined letter in the item name.

MAIN TOOLBAR ICONS

The Main Toolbar buttons allows you to quickly perform certain functions; typically with one click of the mouse button. As with most Windows-based applications, you can reposition the toolbars to place them at the top, bottom, or either side of your screen by dragging them to the desired position while the cursor is positioned on the double-bars located to the left of the tool bar set. You can also select which toolbars you want to view (Main, Navigation, and Format) using the Show Toolbars item under the View main menu. This same menu item allows you to view the toolbar buttons as large or small icons. Each default toolbar button and its function are described below.



Opens the New dialog box, allowing you to open a new calendar document



The remaining toolbar buttons access specific features. Each is discussed in the following.

CALENDAR TYPE INDICATOR

Calendar Creator allows you to work with several different calendars in one file. This field indicates the name of the specific calendar currently in use. Calendars are created by selecting the Add Calendar item under the Calendar main menu located at the top of the screen. The Add Calendar dialog box appears and is used to name the new calendar, indicate the event categories that will be included in the calendar, and indicate the views that will apply to this new calendar. As you create new calendars, they are listed in the Calendar Type drop-down list that is accessible from this field.

CHANGING THE TIME PERIOD OF YOUR CALENDAR

Each calendar view displays a certain amount of time (i.e., a Month, a Week, a Day, etc.). This amount of time is called a period. The period displayed by each of the calendar views can be changed using the left- and right-arrow navigation buttons () located in your toolbar. For example, if you are currently viewing a Month calendar showing February, selecting the left arrow button will result in the Month calendar showing January. Likewise, if you are viewing a Week calendar showing 1st through 7th, selecting the right arrow button will shift the dates displayed by one week (e.g., 8th through 15th).

In addition to using these arrow buttons to shift a calendar period, you can also use the "Go to Today's Date" or "Select a Date" () buttons. When you click on the "Go to Today's Date" button, the calendar view will be adjusted to include today's date. When you activate the "Select a Date" button, the Quick Date dialog box (shown below) will appear. (This button also appears on various *Calendar Creator* dialog boxes.)

	19 R	uicł	(Da	ate			? >	<
Go back a month 🔍	In:	0	÷	Γ		[Go forward a month
Go back a year	4 11 18 25	M 5 12 19 26	Ja T 6 13 20 27	n 19 W 7 14 21 28	198 T 1 8 15 22 29	F 2 9 16 23 30	>> 5 3 10 17 24 31	Go forward a year

Quick Date Dialog Box

This feature is allows you to adjust your calendar dates to a specific time. Select the time using one of the three following methods.

- The "In" field located above the displayed calendar can be used to indicate the number of increments to move the date (e.g., 3). The field beside this is used to define the increments (e.g., months).
- The two double arrows beside the month header can be used to change the calendar view to same month of the next year (double arrows pointing to the right) or the same month of the previous year (double arrows pointing to the left). The inside arrows can be used to change the view to the next month (right arrow) or previous (left arrow) month.
- The mouse can be used to select from the displayed calendar a date of interest. The calendar view, in return, will display the time period containing the date.
- These buttons are active only when one of the seven calendar views is in the active screen. They are shaded grey when the Address Book, Event List, or Clip Art screens are active.

When your calendars are more than one page in length, the "Display Next Page" and "Display Previous Page" buttons can be used to shift your page view.

QUICK SELECTION OF ACTIVE VIEW

Three toolbar buttons are provided that allow you to quickly change your active view to either Address Book, Event List, or Calendar. These are controlled by the Address, Event, and Calendar icons, respectively.



ACTIVE VIEW INDICATOR

This field indicates the View (or type) of the active screen. The active view can be one of the following:

- one of the seven calendars (year, month, multi-month, week, multi-week, weekly planner, or day)
- the Address Book
- the Event List
- the Clip Art screen

Each of these options is selected from the drop-down list accessible from this "View Type" indicator field or from the View Main Menu item located at the top of your screen. The two figures show examples of a Calendar view versus an Event List view. Notice the active View Type indicator in each figure.



Day Calendar View as Active View

ľ,			* 3	1	1	2				
100		麗	Т .		£					
Ge	neral calendar	-		8	黑黑		2		Event List	
-	All				100000	a tau	Lances of	name and the	-	
Debi	ripton		Category		31#10	ate Stat	1 10 10 10 10	42.001	Pertition15	5. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Deal	ration Sit Vestional		Callegian		01/02/15			4246.	PMAQuels	1
Dear V	A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR OFTA CONT			1.1		xse 00.00	18.00	426	Paragents	
×.	Si Vielant		Vecation	1	01/02/15	68 14.00	18:00	42.6	Philadewids	



Choosing a Window Display/Using a Split-Screen View

One of *Calendar Creator*'s most useful features is its ability to display multiple screens simultaneously (e.g., your Calendar and Event List). The Split-Screen option is controlled from the Window main menu item or by activating the split-screen button in your toolbar. The window option contains several screen options that enable you to view multiple calendars and/or windows. When using a split-screen view, you'll notice a double-line bar that controls the size of the windows. When you move the cursor across this double-line bar using the mouse, the pointer will turn from an arrow to double-dashes with small arrows jutting from the top and bottom. When the cursor is in this position, you can click the mouse button and drag this split-screen bar up or down.

Sharing Your Calendar Creator Files on a Network

Calendar Creator makes is easy to share your calendar files that are stored on a server. Once *Calendar Creator* is installed on your network, each user must run **N:/SETUP.EXE**, where **N** represents the drive letter of your server. This installs the system files and updates the .ini file with references to the network.

The program does not offer any file protection beyond that which is available on the network. The network administrator is responsible for assigning read and write privileges for these shared files.

To open an Event List on the server:

□ Use standard Windows techniques to locate the network drive and open the file. If you open an Event List as read-only, you can make temporary changes, but you cannot save the changes to that particular file.

Working with shared Event Lists or calendars that contain pictures is equally as simple; however, the actual picture file is not saved with the file. Instead, the path to that file is saved (i.e., linked). As long as the file remains in that location, you can access it when you open the Event List or calendar file. If the picture file has been moved, a warning message will appear when you open the file.

Opening Event Lists Created in Previous Versions

Calendar Creator 5.0 allows you to open an Event List created in a previous version of *Calendar Creator* (2.0, 3.0, or 4.0). You can select to either keep the style of each event as formatted in the previous version, or have the format of the first event applied to all events from the previous version.

To open an Event List created in a previous version:

Select Open from the File main menu. Then, select the file type to be opened from the Files of type drop-down menu, and select the file to be opened from the Open dialog box. Click on the OPEN button. (To save the new file as a CC5.0 file, see *Chapter 3, Saving Your Calendar File.*)

Linking Files vs. Importing Files

When using *Calendar Creator*, it is important that you understand the difference between linked files and imported files. Linking files simply inserts a path to the specific file. If the file is moved to another location and the path changes, the file will no longer be linked. A warning message informs you of the change. The path will have to be adjusted to re-link the new file. Importing files, on the other hand, actually brings the data from the file into a *Calendar Creator* format. That file can then be saved in a *Calendar Creator* file.

Similarly, there is a file called N:/UNSETUP.EXE, where N represents the drive letter of your server, that can be used to uninstall the program.

Understanding this information is important because *Calendar Creator* gives you the means to import Event Lists, Address Books, and PalmPilot[™] files, or to link Event Lists. Each of these topics is discussed in the following.

Importing Files

Event List, Address Book, and PalmPilot files can be imported using the Import item listed under the File main menu.

To import a file:

- □ Select the Import item from the File main menu. Then, select the type of file to be imported (events, addresses, or "Pilot" files).
- "Pilot" files are those created using the PalmPilot system.
- □ The standard Windows Open File box will appear. Use this box to locate your file, then select ok to import the file.

To export a file:

□ A file is exported using the same technique as above, but instead of selecting the Import menu item, select the Export menu item from the File main menu.

IMPORTING A FILE INTO A NEW OR EXISTING FILE

Calendar Creator 5.0 event files (*.cc5) can be imported into a new or existing *Calendar Creator 5.0* file.

To import a new or existing file:

□ Select the Import item from the File menu, then select Event from the drop-down menu. Select the file type to be opened from the Files of type menu, and select the file to be opened from the Open dialog box. Click on the OPEN button. (To save the new file as a CC5.0 file, see *Chapter 3, Saving Your Calendar File.*)

IMPORTING *.CSV FILES FROM OTHER APPLICATIONS

Event Lists that were created in other applications using the comma separated value (*.csv) format, can be imported using the Import command under the File menu.

To import *.csv files into your Event List:

□ Select Import from the File menu. Then, select Event from the drop-down menu and select (*.csv) as the file type to be imported.

If an Event List is currently open when using the Import feature, the file being imported will merge with the file currently open, creating a single Event List file when saved.

The Import Fields dialog box will appear. This dialog is used to assign properties to each field being imported into the Event List.

- □ Select the first checkbox to convert any special DOS-based characters that are contained in the file being imported.
- □ Select the second checkbox to have the first line of the file imported as a header.
- Assign each field in the imported file to an Event List field by clicking on the column header labeled, "Unassigned," and select the Event List field from the drop-down list. Then, click on the Ok button. (To save the new file as a CC5.0 file, see *Chapter 3, Saving Your Calendar File*.)

LINKING EVENT FILES

Calendar Creator allows you to link event files. This is useful when event files are shared over a network. When a file is linked, it can be seen (and in some cases modified) by those who have been given access to file directory. It is recommended that only one person make modifications to the event file at a time. This will ensure that each person who has linked the file to their application will receive all updated modifications.

To link a file:

□ Select the Link Event Files item from the File main menu.

The Linked Event Files dialog box appears showing any previously linked files.

□ To link a new file, activate the ADD button. The standard Windows Open File box will appear. Use this box to locate your file, then select ok to link the file.

Linked files can be set to update automatically using the Preference dialog box. This box is accessed by selecting the Preferences item from the File main menu. The "Update Network Event Lists" field can be checked to automatically update the files. The "every X minutes" field is used to indicate how often the files should be updated.

You can also manually update the shared files by selecting the Update Linked Events item from the File main menu.

To delete a linked file:

Activate the DELETE button from the Linked Event Files dialog box while the file is selected in the list.

Creating Your Calendar

Calendar Creator provides many enhanced formatting controls. Virtually every inch of your calendar can now be customized! You can add pictures; add and modify text styles, size, and color; add borders and shading; manipulate date ranges; reposition all cells, apply and create QuickStyles, create multiple calendars in one file—this list could go on and on. The focus of this chapter is to introduce you to all of these formatting controls and to help you get started in producing professional looking, unique—and most importantly—*useful* calendars.

Creating a New Calendar File

When you initially open the Calendar *Creator* program, a new (General) calendar in the Month view displays on your screen. This default calendar view can be used as a starting point to create your calendar. It is considered as a calendar file and is given a name when you save it. New calendar files can be created at any time by following these steps.

❑ You can create a new calendar file at any time by selecting the NEW item from the FILE main menu located at the top of the screen. You will be prompted to save, if desired, any existing calendar files, which is done using the standard Windows saving techniques (File/Save or File/Save As).

A new calendar file will be initialized and the default calendar view (Month) will again appear. You can create a new calendar file at any time during the use of this software by repeating these steps.

It should be noted that you can save multiple calendars in one file. Please refer to the "Creating Multiple Calendars and Saving Your Calendars" section to add new calendars to a file.

Selecting Your Calendar "View"

When using *Calendar Creator*, the term "view" refers to the time period shown on a calendar. *Calendar Creator* offers seven calendar views. These are: Year, Month, Multi-Month, Week, Multi-Week, Weekly Planner, and Day.

The Month view is the default calendar view when creating new calendars, but this can easily be changed as follows.

To select your calendar view, you can either:

- select the desired view from the **View** main menu item located at the top the screen, or
- select it from Active View Indicator field (see *Chapter 2* for the location of this field) at the top of your calendar screen.

The calendar views in the following figures show how the views would appear without any customizations.



Month Calendar View (Default)



Year View

	Octo		T - Mu	988	-	EC.	
Salar		П	-	Τ	٦		
Arreador				1			
Constant							
harrat							
Prinang							





Multi-Week View



Week View

This of the local sector	
1110	
Thready	
Materiay AUV	
Phandage M	
Prog.	
June day	

Weekly Planner View

Pantory 3, 2998		
in the second se		
10		
Fall		
rw-		_
ras-		
in a		_
ru-		_

Day View

- □ Select the desired calendar template from the View main menu item located at the top of the screen or from the View Type indicator field (refer to *Chapter 2* for the location of this field).
- The Event List, Event Report, the Address Book, and a Clip Art screen, also listed under the View main menu and the View Type indicator field, are discussed in Chapters 4 and 5.

Once you have selected your calendar view, you are ready to begin utilizing the formatting options! The views provided with this software do not *require* changes in order to serve as fully functional, attractive calendars. They can be used "as is." However, as you become more familiar with *Calendar Creator*, you will probably want to take advantage of all of its formatting capabilities.

Applying a QuickStyle[™]

Before diving into the formatting controls, you may want to look at *Calendar Creator*'s QuickStyles. QuickStyles are pre-formatted styles that can be applied to any calendar view. They are centered on various themes (e.g., Art Deco, Hollywood, Halloween, Christmas, etc.) and include a variety of fonts and color schemes. These styles serve as great examples of the formatting possibilities offered with *Calendar Creator*.

□ Select the QuickStyle item from the Calendar submenu located at the top of the screen.

The QuickStyle dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Autoekuttei	Manih
Black and White Laser Deco Ecology Elegant	Orbober 1997
General High Voltage Modern	西田
Southwest Victorian	• • • • • • • •

QuickStyle Dialog Box Showing Sample Styles

The names of the QuickStyles are listed in the left side of the box. As you scroll down this list, a preview of the calendar style will be displayed in the right side of the box. This preview enables you to see what your calendar will look like before applying a style.

Choose your QuickStyle, then select the APPLY button.

Once you become familiar with the calendar formatting controls, you can create your own QuickStyles to save and re-use your favorite calendar designs. Refer to the next sections for details.

DEFINING YOUR OWN QUICKSTYLES

You can create your own QuickStyles to save your most creative and useful calendar styles so they can be used time after time.

To add a QuickStyle:

□ Select the QuickStyle item from the Calendar main menu located at the top of the screen. Then, select the ADD button from the QuickStyle dialog box while your calendar design is in the active window.

The New QuickStyle dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

New QuickStyle	? ×
New QuickStyle New QuickStyle name:	QuickStyle Preview:

New QuickStyle Dialog Box Showing a Sample Calendar

□ Next, select a calendar view from the drop-down list. This view will become the template for the QuickStyle.

Your customized calendar view will appear in the preview window.

Enter the name of your new QuickStyle in the "New QuickStyle Name" field. Then, click on the save button.

The New QuickStyle dialog box will close, and the name will be added to the QuickStyle list. It will remain in this list until it is deleted.

You can delete a QuickStyle at any time by selecting the item in the list, then activating the DELETE button in the QuickStyle dialog box.

Customizing Your Calendar's Appearance

Calendar Creator has more layout features than ever! Virtually every aspect of your calendar can be customized by using the drawing tools, adding pictures, reformatting text, rotating text and pictures, applying borders, adding colors and patterns, etc.

All calendars are segmented into "cells." Each cell represents a specific area of the calendar to which formatting options can be applied. Cells are distinguishable only when they are "selected." When they are "selected," dotted lines appear around the cell area, as in the example shown below; the Month header is selected.



Calendar Showing the Month Title Field Selected

As you move your cursor around your calendar screen, you will notice that each calendar consists of numerous cells. In addition to these cells, you can add other cells to your calendars using the picture and text placement features. These are discussed later in this chapter.

Formatting Features

To apply formatting features, access the Layout Object Properties dialog box by selecting a cell area, then double-click on it, or right-click on it and select Properties. Depending on the calendar view and the cells selected, different formatting tabs will appear in the Layout Object Properties dialog box. Each tab is discussed in detail in the following sections.

Adding Pictures and Drawing Objects

Pictures and drawing objects (rectangles, round rectangles, ellipses, or lines) can be placed anywhere on your calendar. This includes the background of your calendar and inside specific cells. Pictures are added using the Picture tab, which can be accessed using any the following methods:

- Select the Picture tab from the Layout Object Properties dialog box (by double-clicking in an area where no text currently exists or that is not an event cell).
- Select the Add Drawing Object item from the Calendar main menu, then selecting the Picture item.
- Activate the Insert Picture icon (1) in your main toolbar.
- You can also copy and paste pictures onto your calendar using the Clip Art screen. This process is discussed in the next section.

Using the Layout Object Properties dialog box will place the picture in the selected cell. Using the other methods will allow the picture to remain independent of any field on the screen (i.e., it can be moved anywhere on the calendar).

- □ Using the mouse, select (or highlight) the area where the drawing object is to be added (e.g., calendar cell). If you are inserting a new cell (using the Add Drawing Object method or Insert Picture icon), the cursor will change from an arrow to a plus symbol (+). Click and drag the plus symbol to define the new cell area.
- You can position the picture cell anywhere on the calendar by making sure that the "Moveable" field on the Style tab is checked.

Once you have selected or drawn an area, the Layout Object Properties dialog box will appear.

Layout Object Properties	? x
Style Picture Reports	(Second Second S
Tipe peeced Datum	CVProgrow File/VCCSV/RTVH announced und
Pictures in this calendar	
0 :: Na Picture	
J. Harwook.und	🔪 🥌
Date 21	
	Roteness
Duty make Insugant cols	C States C Server
	No thongs Of Link to the file
05.	Cancel Anno Heb

Layout Object Properties Dialog Box Showing the Picture Tab with Pictures

Select the Picture tab from the dialog box.

No picture files will be listed when you first access this tab. As you import these files, they will be added to the "Picture in this Calendar" list.

The first step to adding pictures to your selected area is to add pictures to the "Picture in this Calendar" list. This is done using the standard Windows Browse feature (shown opened in the figure below) to scan your files. Refer to your Window user's guide if you are unsure how to browse your files.



Open Dialog Box Used to Browse Files

Browse your files to find a picture, then click on the OPEN button.

This will place the picture file in the "Pictures in this Calendar" list.

The "Time Period" field located at the top of this dialog box can be used to place the picture next to an item in your Event List for a specified time period only. This field will be disabled if no time period applies.

As you select an image in your "Pictures in this Calendar" list, you can apply formatting controls using the buttons located in the lower-left portion of the tab and the check boxes located in the lower-right portion of the box. The functions of each button and box are described below.

- Rotate 90° will flip the image 90 degrees to the right.
- Save to Disk will prompt the file directory so the image can be saved as a bitmap file.
- Flip Horizontally will flip the image to the left creating a mirror effect.
- Flip Vertically will flip the image upside down creating a mirror effect.
- Delete will remove the image from the "Pictures in this Calendar" list.

- **Purge** will purge the previewed image and any formatting adjustments made to it.
- **Brightness** will increase or decrease the intensity difference between the lighter and darker elements of the image.
- Fit to Area is used to enlarge or shrink the image to fit the selected area as much as possible while keeping the image's original proportions (Proportional), fill the entire area regardless of the proportions (Complete), or leave the image as is (No change). You can select only one of these options at a time.
- **Tile** produces the picture as in a tile format.
- Center
- You can select either Tile or Center, but not both at the same time. Likewise, you cannot select Tile if you have selected a Fit to Area option.
- **Transparent** allows you to select a color (e.g., background color) to make transparent (i.e., remove from the picture). To the left of this toggle box is a field labeled "Transparent Color." The color displayed in this field indicates which color is transparent. To change the color, either click on the color field to retrieve the Color dialog box to select a color, or click on the dropper icon, then point to the color in the previewed picture that you want to be transparent.
- Link to the File allows you to save the file *path* (not the actual file) in your calendar file.



Pictures require a large amount of memory. Saving them in your file may slow the speed of your system as well as occupy a large amount of your hard drive space.

The last formatting tool located between the buttons and check boxes is used to pan around the image. Hold down the mouse button and move the cursor to view different parts of the image.

- □ Apply any formatting properties to the picture, then click on ok in the Add Event dialog box to insert the image into your Event List.
- You can remove pictures from your calendar by selecting the picture, then activating the DELETE button.

Adding drawing objects to your calendars is similar to adding pictures. You simply select one of the four drawing options: rectangle, round rectangle, ellipse, and line. They are listed under the Calendar main menu located at the top of the screen. The cursor will change from an arrow to a cross-like symbol (+). Use this

to define the new cell area by clicking and dragging the mouse. It can be placed anywhere on the calendar.

□ Select (or highlight) the area where the drawing is to be added by dragging the mouse to define the area.

Once you have placed your drawing object, you can apply various formatting options using the Layout Object Properties dialog box and even add pictures inside your drawing objects by following the above instructions.

Adding Clip Art

Calendar Creator provides over 5,000 clip art images. These images can be accessed using the Clip Art view, and then be copied and pasted to your calendar files.

□ Access the Clip Art view by either selecting the Clip Art item from the View Main Menu located at the top of the screen or by selecting it from the Active View Indicator field drop-down list.

The Clip Art screen will appear and resemble the screen shown in the figure below.



Clip Art View

Prior to opening your Clip Art folders, you can use the Clip Art Properties dialog box to control the image sizes, spacing, etc.

To access the Clip Art Properties dialog box:

Select the Clip Art item from the Calendar main menu. Then, select the Properties item.

Clipart Properties			? ×
Default <u>W</u> idth:	64	Default Width Spacing:	32
Default <u>H</u> eight:	48	Default Height Spacing:	24
Default <u>N</u> ame Width:	64	Page Width:	
Default Name H <u>e</u> ight:	12	Page Height:	
Font for Name	🔲 Include File	Extension in name	
	🔲 Save Pictur	es in <u>F</u> ile	
OK	Ca	ncel <u>H</u> elp	

The Clip Art Properties dialog box will appear and resemble the figure below.

Clip Art Properties Dialog Box

The Default Width and Height settings are used to control the size of each clip art image as it will appear on your Clip Art screen. The Default Name Width and Height settings control the size of the image's name. The Default Width and Height Spacing setting control the amount of space between each image. The Page Width and Height setting control the size of the page on which the images are displayed.

The "FONT FOR NAME" button accesses the Font dialog box, which can be used to change the font of the image names as they appear on your Clip Art screen.

The "Include File Name" field can be checked to display the file name of each image.

The "Save Pictures in File" field will import the folder to the *Calendar Creator* program where it can be stored as a (*.ca5) file.

□ Using the information above, make the necessary changes to the clip art properties to alter the way the images appear on your Clip Art screen. Then, save these settings by clicking on the ok button.

To access clip art images:

Select the Clip Art item from the Calendar main menu. Then, select the Add Folder item. If you want to add the folder, plus its sub-folders, select the Add Sub Folders item. The Browse for Folder dialog box will appear.

Using the standard Windows Browse method, search for the clip art file you want to open.

The images from that folder will be placed on your Clip Art screen. The images that you want to appear on your calendar are added using the copy/paste method.

□ Simply select the image in your Clip Art screen, then choose the Copy item from the Edit main menu or click on the Copy icon in your main tool bar. View your calendar, then select Paste from the Edit main menu or click on the Paste icon in your main tool bar.

The image will be pasted on your calendar screen. Once it is pasted on your calendar screen, it becomes part of that calendar file and can be manipulated using the Layout Object Properties dialog box.

The Line Up Objects item under the Clip Art menu can be used to align multiple pasted images on your clip art screen.

Imported clip art folders can be saved with a clip art extension (*.ca5) by selecting the Save as Clip Art item from the Clip Art menu.

When you add clip art images to your calendar files, you are given the option of making them transparent. Selecting this option will adjust the images to appear clear in certain areas (e.g., background), however, the clip art picture will remain as is. This will enable you to see both your calendar and your clip art image on the same screen.

Adding Text to Your Calendar

Text is added to your calendar using the Text Box feature. A Text Box is similar to adding pictures in that you add a new cell to your calendar where poems, jokes, etc., can be entered. Text boxes differ from event text in that they may be positioned anywhere on your calendar by clicking and dragging the cell to its desired location.

To add a text box:

□ Either select the Text item from the Calendar main menu located at the top of the screen, or click on the Add Text (**T**) icon in the main toolbar.

The cursor will change from an arrow to a plus symbol (+). Click and drag the plus symbol to define the new cell area.

□ Insert the text box by clicking and dragging the mouse to define the text area.

A text box placeholder will appear on your calendar and the Text Object Properties dialog box will open. The figure below shows an example of a text box placeholder.



Portion of a Calendar Showing an Empty Text Box

To add text to an empty text box:

- Select the Text tab from the Text Object Properties dialog box.
- You can also access the Properties box by selecting the Properties item from the Edit main menu located at the top of the screen while a text box placeholder is selected.

The Text tab of the Text Object Properties dialog box will display.

Tent Digler Tanno G223	Inter For a furcher.	Constant Constant Constant Constant Constant United United United United United United
Saleak Teod		at the repeat the short protect if a mithe short for University and all

Text Object Properties Dialog Box Showing the Text Tab

The "Text" field at the top of this tab is the where your text is entered. As you type in your text, it will display in the window in lower half of the tab.

Applying Text Functions

Text functions are defined as the variable text that is supplied by the program to be added to event descriptions and various calendar elements. To further explain, refer to this example. If you apply the "&date" function to an event or text cell, the date displayed will be proportional to the actual date. If you switch the calendar view using the previous or next period arrows, the date displayed will be automatically adjusted.

The "Topic" field is used to select the text topic. The "Function" field lists the available functions that can be applied to the specific topic. As you scroll through each of the topics and functions listed, a complete description of its action will be provided. Use these descriptions as a guide to help you select the right function for your needs.

□ Once you have selected the topic and functions, apply them by activating the PASTE FUNCTION button. Then, save your changes by activating the ok button.

Once you have entered you text, you can apply a variety of styling options using the Style, Special Effects, Shadow/Highlight, Picture, and Repeats tabs. These are discussed in the following sections.

STYLE TAB

The Style tab is used to select your text style, color, and font; to apply borders and shading; and set your text box as moveable.



These instructions can also be used to modify the font of predefined text cells (such as Month headers, etc.).

The "Moveable" field is used to set your text as moveable. This means that whenit is selected, you can click and drag the text around the screen. If you don't want your text set as moveable, leave this field unmarked.

The Text Style options are located in the left portion of the Style tab and include Justification, All Caps, and FONTS.

- Justification is used to position the text to the left, right, or center of the cell.
- All Caps, when checked, will change the font to appear in ALL CAPITAL LETTERS.
- The Forts button is used to access the Fort dialog box, which contains the available forts and fort styles.
- □ To change the font, position the cursor on the FONTS button and click the mouse button once.
The Sample Font dialog box will appear and resemble the box shown.

Font			? ×
Eont: T Arial T Arial Aria Black T Arial Black T Arial Narrow T Book Antiqua T Bookshelf Symbol 1 T Bookshelf Symbol 2	Font style: Regular Regular Italic Bold Bold Italic	Size: 10 10 11 12 14 16 18 20	OK Cancel
Effects Strikeout Underline Color: Black	Sample AaBbYyZ Script: Western		

Sample Font Dialog Box

The Sample Font dialog box operates as it does in other Windows-based applications.

- **Font** lists the fonts available with *Calendar Creator*.
- Font Style lists the styles available with each font.
- Size lists the sizes available with each font.
- **Effects** allows you to add strike-out marks or underlines to the selected font, as well as select the color of your text.
- Sample shows a preview of the selected font with the applied settings.
- Script lists the available language scripts for the specified font.
- Select the desired text settings, then save the changes by clicking on the ok button.

The dialog box will close and the font and style will be applied to the text.

In the Text Object Properties dialog box, the Background options are used to add background colors, and the Border options are used to add inside and outside borders.

- Shading is used to choose a pattern or a solid shade of the color indicated in the "Shading" field.
- **Color** allows you to select the color of the area.
- Shape allows you to choose between a rectangle and a round rectangle as the colored area.
- Show Shadow is used to add a shadow effect to the shaded area.
- The **Inside Border** and **Outside Border** options include border style and color.
- **Border Style** is used to add an inside or outside (or both) border around the selected area and to select the style of the border.
- **Color** is used to select the colors of the inside and outside borders.

The following figure shows an example of the selected month header with borders and shading.



Example of a Month Layout with Shading and Inside and Outside Borders

Using the controls described above, add shading, color, and borders to your calendar or text. Don't be afraid to try any combination of formats. When you have adjusted the borders, colors, and shading to meet your specifications, apply the options to your calendar by selecting the oκ button in the Text Object Properties dialog box.

SPECIAL EFFECTS TAB

The Special Effects tab is used to apply visual effects to your text. For example, you can select a thick font style, then fill it with a woven pattern or a picture.

I to Shape I with Picture	Flectangular No Picture		
al with Ealtern	None	-	
Stual Effect	None	*	
Color Scheme Auto Size	Test	Color used for pattern	
wiap Words	F Tel Argle	p 1 C Shydow F Highlight	
Text			I
Text			l

Special Effects Tab

The Special Effects include the following controls that can be applied to the text.

- Fit to Shape is used to indicate the shape the text is to fill.
- Fill with Picture is used to add a picture to the font style.
- Fill with Pattern is used to add a pattern to the font style.
- **Visual Effect** allows you to add style to the text such as raised, sunken, shadow, flying, or a custom effect.
- **Color Scheme** allows you to add patterns to the text (such as custom, embossed, gold, steel).
- Auto Size automatically adjusts the text size to the text box.
- **Text Wrap** automatically wraps the text to the next line when the sentence length is too long for the text box.
- **Tile Picture** box is used to apply a picture as a repeated pattern in the letters.

- Angle of Text is used to slant the text at a specified angle.
- **Color** Used for Pattern is used to apply the selected pattern to either the shadowed area or the highlighted area of the text, or both areas.
- □ Using the information above, add the desired special effects to your text. Click on the APPLY button to preview each formatting change before saving it. When you are satisfied with your effects, select the ok button.

SHADOW/HIGHLIGHT TAB

The Shadow/Highlight tab (shown below) can be used to add a shadow and/or highlights to your text.

Object Propertie at Style Spec	10-14 A DO	Highlight Picture Re	penato	
ligtingte Division Dasate (0 17 Eginadia	Direction	Shadow Syle: Morrial Dgoth: 0 If Extrade	N Dention C C C C C C C C	
'ext				

Shadow/Highlight Tab

The Shadow/Highlight tab contains the following options:

- **Style** is used to indicate the style of the shadow or highlight such as Real, Extruded, or Graduated.
- **Depth** is used to indicate how deep you want the shadow and highlight to appear.
- The **Direction** boxes are used to select the angle of the shadow or highlight.
- **Extrude** fills in the area between the text and its shadow giving your text a 3-D effect.

The rectangle area located to the right of the "Style" fields is used to select the color of the shadow or highlight. Simply click in the field to display the color palette, then choose your color.

A preview of the styled text will display in the Preview area as each change is made.

□ Using the information above, add the desired shadows/highlights to your text. Click on the APPLY button to preview each change before saving it. When you are satisfied with your changes, select the ok button.

PICTURES TAB

Adding pictures to your text boxes is similar to adding a picture to your calendar. This feature is discussed in detail in the *Adding Pictures and Drawing Objects* section of this chapter. Please refer to this section for instructions on how to add pictures to your text boxes.

REPEATS TAB

This section explains how to repeat text boxes on certain days or at certain times. This is done using the Repeats tab of the Text Object Properties dialog box.

Select the Event tab from the Text Object Properties dialog box.

The Repeats tab will resemble the screen shown below.

Text Object Properties Text Size Speciations StudiesHighlight Roser - R	17 X
Set open score was de Start Date (1615)	
The moved to specify only posted in the cell tase	Egreptions () No exceptions () Weekend accommons Do not more ()
Eand	

Text Object Properties Dialog Box Showing the Repeats Tab

The first step to setting the repeat is to define the repeat occurrence rule. This is done by selecting one of the three repeat options or by manually entering the dates in the "Start Date" field (indicates the date of the first occurrence of the event) and the "Repeat Until" field (indicates the last day the event will be repeated).

The icons beside each of these fields can be click ond to access the Quick Date dialog box. For further instructions on using this box, please refer to Chapter 2, Getting Started.

If you choose to indicate the repeat dates using one of the three repeat options, the lower half of the box changes according to the option selected. Each is discussed below.

- When you select the "Year, Month, Day" item, three columns will display listing year numbers, month names, and days in dates (1–31). Checking the "All Days," "All Months," or "All Years" items will select all the times listed.
- When you select the "Year, Month, Week, Weekday" item, four columns will display listing year number, month names, week numbers (1–5), and day names (Monday through Sunday). Checking the "All Days," "All Months," or "All Years" items will select all the times listed.
- When you select the third option; "Every," three fields are displayed prompting you to indicate increments of time (e.g., 4 months, 5 years, 2 days, etc.), and select which days, by date (1–31), you want to repeat in the text box.

The right portion of the Repeats tab displays a Month calendar layout. This calendar is used to indicate any exceptions to the "Repeat Occurrence Rule." Exception dates are selected by clicking on the date in the calendar. The dates are listed in the drop-down menu of the "Exceptions" field. If there are no exceptions to the rule, this field remains set to the default value, "No Exceptions."

You can change the month displayed using the arrows located on either side of the month name. The two single arrows change the calendar dates to the next (right arrow) and previous (left arrow) month. The two double arrows change the calendar dates to the same month in the next (right arrows) or previous (left arrows) year.

The "Weekend Occurrences" field is used to automatically move the text box to another day when its repeated date falls on a weekend. Possible options are Monday, Friday, the closest weekday, delete the occurrence, or move all occurrences to weekends only.

Using the instructions above, set the text box to repeat as needed. Then, select the οκ button to save the changes.

Adding Notes to Your Calendar

Notes can be added to your calendar to display important information using the Notes option. Adding notes is similar to using text boxes in that they can be added anywhere on your calendar.

To add notes:

Select the Note item from the Calendar main menu or click on the Insert Note icon () in the main toolbar.

The cursor will change from an arrow to a plus symbol (+). Click and drag on the plus symbol to define the new cell area.

Insert the note by clicking and dragging the mouse to define the note area.

The Notes box will appear on your calendar and the Formatting toolbar will open. The Formatting toolbar is provided to give you a quick means of changing the format of the note text. The figure below shows an example of a note box and the Formatting toolbar.



Calendar Showing a Note and Formatting Toolbar

Your notational text should be entered directly into the note cell.

- You can reposition your note in the calendar by selecting the note cell and dragging the mouse.
- Enter the notational information and apply the desired formatting changes. The Formatting toolbar will disappear when you position the cursor outside the note box and click the mouse button.

Adding Date Objects

Date Objects are appendage calendars that can be added to a calendar view. These Date Objects may consist of any one of the seven calendar views or a title, subtitle, or footer cell. The availability of each Date Object is dependent on the active calendar view. Date Objects are display only in events that can not be entered in the individual calendar cells.

To add a Date Object to a calendar:

□ Select the Add Date Object item from the Calendar main menu. Then, select the desired object to be added.

The cursor will change from an arrow to a plus symbol (+). Click and drag to define the area for the new Date Object.

Define the Date Object's area by clicking and dragging the mouse.

When you release the mouse button, the Date Object will be placed on your calendar (see the figure below). You can adjust the size of the new Date Object at any time, as well as place it anywhere on your calendar, by selecting the cell and dragging the mouse. In addition, you can add a style option, insert a picture, or control the miscellaneous settings of the date object by double-clicking the mouse button or by selecting the Properties item from the Edit main menu while the Date Object is selected.

Thursday	Friday	Saturday
1	2	3
		Jan 1998 <u>S M T W T F S</u> 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 910 11121314151617 18192021222324 25262728293031

Calendar with a Date Object Inserted

Determining Layer Orders

Layer orders are useful in situations where you have multiple calendars or cells that overlap each other on you calendar screen. For example, if you have added a new Date Object or placed a picture on your calendar, you may find that they overlap each other. In such a case, you may use the Layer Order feature to determine your actual view.

Four layer order options are offered: one level up, one level down, top level, and bottom level. Your use of these options will depend on how many cells you have that overlap.

To apply a layer order option:

Select the cell that you want to adjust, then choose the appropriate layer order for the cell from the Layer Order menu item on the Calendar main menu.

Continue to play with this feature until you have situated all of your cells as desired. The figure below shows an example of a picture that was placed on the calendar, then given a "bottom level" layer order.



Calendar Showing Layers

Viewing Your Calendar Pages

The View Pages feature, which is accessed from the Calendar main menu, can be used to preview your calendar page, as well as to add or remove pages from your calendar.

To access the View Pages feature:

Select the "Pages" item from the Calendar main menu.

The View Pages dialog box will open displaying your calendar in the preview window, as shown in the example below.

V		Page ige 1	: \$? ×
				ober I				
							•	ОК
				•			"	<u>N</u> ext
			н	n	•		/3	<u>P</u> revious
	,					14		<u>A</u> dd
								<u>D</u> elete
	•		13		•	v		<u>H</u> elp

View Pages Dialog Box Showing a Sample Page

The function buttons located to the right of the previewed image are used to move between pages (NEXT and PREVIOUS buttons) and add and remove pages.

To add a calendar page, click on the ADD button.

When you do so, your preview window will close and a blank calendar page will appear on the main screen. This page can be used to: add Date Objects, pictures, text boxes, etc. This gives you the ability to create multiple-page calendars in a variety of styles.

Changing Your Calendar's Start Day

The *Calendar Creator* calendar views can be adjusted to begin on any day of the week. This is done using the Week Start Day feature.

To change the day of the week on which your calendar begins:

□ Select the Week Start Day item from the Calendar main menu located at the top of the screen. Then, select the day of the week on which you would like your calendar to begin.

All calendar views will be adjusted so that the day selected will be starting day of each week.

To display weekdays only on your calendar:

□ Choose "Weekdays only," in the Calendar Type Indicator window located at the top-left of your calendar screen. (See Chapter 2, *Calendar Type Indicator*.)

Creating and Saving Multiple Calendars

As briefly explained at the beginning of this chapter, calendars are saved as *Calendar Creator* files (*.cc5). Multiple calendars can be saved as one file by creating different calendar types. Each calendar file can contain as many individual calendars as you wish. This enables you to save your Personal Calendar, Business Calendar, and Holiday Calendar in one file (e.g., named "My Calendars.cc5").

Any time you access this "My Calendars.cc5" file, each individual calendar can be viewed and modified by selecting it from the "Calendar Type" indicator field.

To create multiple calendars as one file:

Select the Add Calendar item from the Calendar main menu item located at the top of the screen.

The Add Calendar dialog box will appear and resemble the following figure.

Add Calendar	? ×
Calendar Style Categories Calendar Views	
Choose a design style for your calendar	
Calendar <u>N</u> ame Custom calendar	
Preview style	
Calendar <u>Q</u> uickStyles:	
OK Cancel	Help

Add Calendar Dialog Box Showing the Calendar Style Tab

- □ Select the Calendar Style tab from the box.
- The Style tab can also be accessed by selecting the Calendar Properties item from the Calendar main menu. The settings you make are considered the calendar's properties. The properties for each calendar you create can be adjusted by selecting the Properties item from the Calendar menu.

The cursor position will default to the "Calendar Name" field.

□ Enter the name of your calendar in this field. You can apply a QuickStyle to your new calendar, if desired, by selecting the style from the "QuickStyle" list.

Once you have named your new calendar (and applied a QuickStyle, if desired), select the categories that will be made available for the specific calendar. This is done using the Categories tab.

□ Select the Categories tab from the dialog box.

The Categories tab will appear and resemble the following figure.

Add Calendar	<u>? x</u>
Calendar Style Categories Cale	ndar Views
Check the categories to appe	ar on your calendar
Vacation Birthday	
Anniversary	<u>D</u> elete
Contact	
Meeting	Properties
🗌 To Do	
General	
ОК	Cancel Help

Calendar Properties Dialog Box Showing the Categories Tab

All categories that have been previously defined will be listed on this tab.

To assign a category to the calendar:

Select a category by placing a checkmark (✓) in the box beside the item. You can add a new category at any time by activating the ADD button, and entering the new category name in the blank space provided in the list. Be sure to place a "✓" in the box beside the new item if you want it to be available on your new calendar.

Next, you must select the calendar views (month, week, year, etc.) that will be available for the new calendar. This is done using the Calendar Views tab.

□ Select the Calendar Views tab from the dialog box.

The Calendar Views tab will appear and resemble the following figure.

Add Calendar	? ×
Add Calendar Calendar Style Categories Calendar Views Please select the views you wish to see in yo Year Multi-Month Month Multi-Week Week Week Planner Day ClipArt	? × ur calendar: <u>A</u> dd <u>R</u> emove <u>P</u> roperties
OK Cancel	Help

Calendar Properties Dialog Box Showing the Calendar Views Tab

The seven calendar views and the clip art view will be listed in this tab.

To select a calendar view:

Click on the ADD button while the cursor is positioned on the item.

The View Properties box will appear. The View Properties dialog box is discussed in detail in the following section.

Defining the View Properties

As you create your calendars, you may also define the calendars' view properties. This is done using View Properties dialog box.

To access the View Properties dialog box:

Either select the ADD button from the Calendar Properties dialog box, or select the View Properties item from the Calendar main menu.

The View Properties dialog box will appear and resemble the figure below.

Isee	Plant Land		-	
10.50%	1090	-1	-	
Heine	1100	-		

View Properties Dialog Box

The General tab will be displayed. This tab is used to indicate the name of your calendar and its type, as well as to control its viewing width and height. Default settings are provided by the software, however, they can be changed if needed.

The Facing Picture tab of the View Properties dialog box is used to add a facing picture to your calendar.

□ If you want to **add a facing picture** to your calendar, select the Facing Picture tab and add the image, following the steps previously outlined in the "Adding Pictures and Drawing Objects" section of this chapter.

The Object tab of the View Properties dialog box is used to control the placement of your calendar objects, such as background, title, footer, inserted pictures, etc. The "Visible" field is used to control the visibility of the selected object. For example, if you wanted to hide the footer of a calendar, you can remove the mark from the "Visible" field. The "X" and "Y" fields represent the placement coordinates of the selected object. The "Width" and "Height" fields control the size of the selected object.

- □ Make any necessary adjustments to the objects that appear on your calendar.
- U When you are finished, click on the ok button to save your changes.

Saving Your Calendar File

When you are satisfied with your calendar, you can save the file (containing as many calendars as you wish) by following these steps.

□ Select Save from the File main menu located at the top of the screen. Then, indicate the location where you would like to save the calendar file and enter the name you have assigned.

The calendar file will be stored as a (*.cc5) file. All files can be retrieved at any time using the standard Windows File/Open method.

SAVING A PREVIOUS VERSION FILE

When you open a file created in a previous version of *Calendar Creator* (2.0, 3.0, or 4.0), you can now save it as a *Calendar Creator 5.0* file. (See *Chapter 2, Opening Event Lists Created in Previous Versions.*)

To save a file created in a previous version:

□ Open the file, then select Save from the File menu. Enter the name the new file will be saved under, select the location where you would like to save the new calendar file, and click on the SAVE button.

THE AUTOSAVE FEATURE

This feature allows the program to automatically save a document at time-specific intervals that you designate. This helps to keep the document updated with the latest changes, without requiring any further action by you. The AutoSave feature is located in the Preferences dialog box, which can be accessed using the Preferences command located under the File menu.

Interaction Between Your Calendar and Event Lists

Once you have perfected the appearance of your calendar, you can begin to add Events. This is done using an Event List. An Event List is simply a listing of the information you want to display on your calendar. Please refer to the next chapter for complete information on using Event Lists to fully customize your calendars.

Creating a Custom View

Besides using the default view available in Calendar Creator, you can create your own custom views to reflect your personal needs.

To create a custom view:

- Select the Calendar Properties command from the Calendar main menu. When the Calendar Properties dialog box appears, select the Calendar Views tab. Click on the ADD button and the View Properties dialog box will appear.
- □ In the View Properties dialog box, name your custom calendar view, select the view your custom view will be based on (you can also remove views you don't need), set the height and width of your custom view, and add facing pictures, if any, that you would like to associate with your custom view. Click on ok to save your selections.

When the Calendar Properties dialog box reappears, you will now see the name of your custom view in the list of available views. You can use the Calendar Style and Categories tabs to set the style, name, QuickStyle, and categories associated with your new custom view.

Adding Events to Your Calendar

Now that you've learned how to customize the appearance of your calendar, it is time to begin using it! *Calendar Creator* defines the information you want to include on your calendar (such as birthdays, appointments, holidays, etc.) as "Events." Events are added to your calendar using an "Event List." An Event List is simply a file containing your events that is saved with your calendar(s). A new event list can be created with each new calendar to group your various types of events such as business events and social events. Doing so allows you to create customized calendars for specific purposes.

Accessing the Event List

An Event List can be accessed in a variety of ways.

To access the Event List, choose one of the following methods:

- Select the Event View item from the Events main menu.
- Select the Event List item from the View main menu.
- Select the Event List item from the Active Screen Indicator field dropdown list.
- Click on the Event List icon (55).

The Event List will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

L.		2 2 3	-	11	Z			
8	2 8 2	II I 🖪	*	-59 1481-10				
Ge	eneral calendar 🕒	1	8. J	R 2	虚 .	<u>9.</u> F	 Event List	•
+ 2	All	Collegary		Start Date	Stat	leven (a	 Participants	
2	Sit Vielant	Vecation		01/02/1998	00.00	18.00		
		To De		01.01.1998	14.00	18.00		
4	Exclosel Party	To Do		101100000000	1.00	10.04		
5 5	Factored Party Drunch	Hedro	_	01/01/1998		13.00		

Example of an Event List

The Event List is comprised of the Display Event check box, an icon representing the event category, and the event information.

The **Display Event** check box allows you to choose to display an event on your calendar (the default) or to remove the event from the calendar without removing it from the list.

The **Category** icon represents the event category. It will appear here if you have selected a predefined category or if you have assigned an icon to a your own defined category. (Creating categories is discussed in *Creating and Maintaining Event Categories.*) The icon can be used to quickly access the associated Event Dialog Box by clicking the mouse button while the cursor is positioned in the icon field.

The **Event Information** fields are used to enter and display information concerning your events. This information can be entered using the Add Event dialog box, or it can be entered directly onto your Event List in the appropriate field. Each field is briefly explained below and explained in detail in the sections that follow as they pertain to the functions and features discussed.

- **Description** displays brief information about the event.
- **Category** indicates the type of the event (e.g., general, meeting, birthday, holiday, etc.). Event Categories are user-definable.
- **Priority** indicates the priority of the event in relation to the other events listed.
- Start Date indicates the date the event begins.
- **Start Time** indicates the time when the event begins.
- End Time indicates the time when the event ends.
- Attributes indicate if a note or an alarm has been associated with the event.
- **Participants** lists people in your Address Book who are participating in the event.

Creating and Maintaining Event Categories

Before you begin adding your event information, you may want to set up a few features to suit your needs. The first of these is the Event Categories. *Calendar Creator* provides you with basic event categories such as Birthdays, Anniversaries, To Do, and Meetings, etc. If you want to add your own category, such as Business Appointment or School Assignment, follow the steps outlined in this section.

You can create an unlimited number of categories for each calendar. For example, your Work Calendar could include categories such as Meetings, To Do, Deadlines; and your Social Calendar could include categories such as Birthdays, Dinner Dates, Baseball Schedule, Weddings, etc.

□ To create custom categories, select the Categories item from the Events main menu.

You will see the Categories dialog box, as shown below, with sample categories.

🔒 Ca	tegories	? ×
	Check the categories to appear on y	our calendar
	General	ЬРА
	ToDo	
	Meeting	<u>D</u> elete
✓	Appointment	Properties
V	Contact	
	Anniversary	ОК
	Birthday	
	Vacation	Cancel

Categories Dialog Box

□ Select the ADD button, then position the cursor in the "New Category" field and click the mouse button once to select the text. Modify the field to display the name of your new category.

If you want to apply formatting features, enable an alarm, or add pictures to events that fall within this category, you can do so using the PROPERTIES button. It accesses the Style, Alarm, and Picture tabs (each tab is discussed below). When you apply properties to an event category, these properties are automatically assigned to the events that comprise the category.

You can delete a category type by selecting it in the list, then activating the DELETE button.

ASSOCIATING A SPECIFIC STYLE TO A CATEGORY

The Style tab of the Categories dialog box is used to format the event text and add effects.

Select the PROPERTIES button on the Categories dialog box, then select the Style tab.

The Text Style options are located in the right portion of the Style tab and include Justification, All Caps, and a FONTS button.

- **Justification** is used to position the text to the left, right, or center of the cell.
- All Caps, when checked, will change the font to appear in ALL CAPITAL LETTERS.
- The FONTS button is used to access the Font dialog box, which contains the available fonts and font styles.

The Event Effects portion of this tab allows you to indicate whether the text should be placed on your calendar as a Box Event or a Banner Event. The "Shading" and "Color" fields are used to add shading and color to the event text. A preview of your customized text style will appear in the "Sample" area as you make changes.

□ To change the font, position the cursor on the FONTS button and click the mouse button once.

The Font dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Font			? ×
Eont: Aria	Font style: Regular	<u>S</u> ize:	ОК
T Arial T Arial Black T Arial Narrow T Book Antiqua T Bookshelf Symbol 1 T Bookshelf Symbol 2	Regular Italic Bold Bold Italic	10 • 11 12 14 16 18 20 •	Cancel
Effects Stri <u>k</u> eout <u>U</u> nderline Color:	Sample AaBbYyZ	z	
Black	Script: Western	•	

Font Dialog Box

This dialog box operates as it does on other Windows-based applications.

- Font lists the fonts available with *Calendar Creator*.
- Font Style lists the styles available with each font.
- Size lists the sizes available with each font.
- **Effects** allows you to add strikeout marks or underlines to the selected font, as well as select the color of your text.
- Sample shows a preview of the selected font with the applied settings.
- Script lists the available language scripts for the specified font.
- Select the desired settings, then save the changes by clicking on ok.

The dialog box will close, and the selected font and style settings will be associated with the specified category.

ASSOCIATING AN ALARM TO A CATEGORY

The Alarm tab is used to play a sound, launch an application, or compose a message that will indicate the occurrence of a specific event. *Calendar Creator* operates in conjunction with *Calendar Creator* Scheduler when using alarms. Therefore, please refer to the *Using the Scheduler to Activate Your Alarms* section of this chapter for more information on how this process works.

Select the **PROPERTIES** button on the Category Properties dialog box, then select the Alarm tab.

The Alarm tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

operties for General	1
Syle Alers Picture	
Files Contractor	
Alaria Settings	
C Evalle Alast	Entres Event
Alarts Sound	
	Eposen Lest
Alam Laurch	
CI	Bogin Tgit
Alam Menoge	
E.	
	DK Convei Help

Category Properties Dialog Box Showing the Alarm Tab

When you first access this screen, the Alarm settings will be disabled. You must select the "Alarm" option to activate them.

□ Select the "Enable Alarm" option to enable the alarm settings

Once the settings are enabled, you can indicate using the "Hrs" and "Mins" fields when in relation to the event date/time you want the alarm to occur. These fields work in conjunction with the "Before Event" or "After Event" fields to set the actual alarm time.

□ Indicate the time when the alarm should occur.

Three different types of alarms can be set: Sound, Launch, and Message. Sound will produce a noise at the time of the event. Launch will cause a specified program application to be launched at the time of the event. Message will produce a user-defined message across your screen at the time of the event. You can select apply one, two, or all three of these types of alarms.

To set the Sound alarm:

Select the alarm by placing an "X" in the "Alarm Sound" field. Then, use the standard Windows Browse feature to select the sound file that will be used. (If you are unsure of how to use the Browse feature, please refer to your *Windows Users Guide* for instructions.) Once you have linked the sound file, you can test it by activating the TEST button.

To set the Launch alarm:

Select the alarm by placing an "X" in the "Alarm Launch" field. Then, use the standard Windows Browse feature to select the program to be launched when the event occurs. (If you are unsure of how to use the Browse feature, please refer to your *Windows Users Guide* for instructions.) Once you have linked the program file, you can test it by activating the TEST button.

To set the Message alarm:

□ Select the alarm by placing an "X" in the "Alarm Message" field. Then, simply enter the text that you would like to appear on your screen when the event occurs.

ASSOCIATING PICTURES WITH A CATEGORY

The Pictures tab is used to provide the link between pictures and a category.

Select the PROPERTIES button on the Category Properties dialog box, then select the Pictures tab.

The Picture tab will resemble the figure shown below.



Properties for General Dialog Box Showing the Picture Tab

No picture files will be listed when you first access this tab. As you import these files, they will be added to the "Pictures in this calendar" list.

Pictures are added to the "Pictures in this calendar" list by using the standard Windows Browse feature (shown opened in the figure below) to scan your files. Refer to your Windows user's guide if you are unsure of how to use this feature.

Last p. Lator	- 8 0	1
Ad Stangess Tempinte		
Regard		len l
Negana Mecolype Million	arfie 🛃 🗌	lam.
and the second second	an Files	Anni Popularia anni Popularia Coppusa

Open Dialog Box Used to Browse Files

□ Browse your files to find your pictures, then click on the OPEN button.

This will place the picture file in the "Pictures in this Calendar" list.

The "Time Period" field located at the top of this box can be used to place the picture next to the item on your event list for a specified time period only.

The image selected in your "Pictures in this Calendar" list can be formatted using the buttons located in the lower-left portion of the tab and the check boxes located in the lower-right portion of the box. The functions of each button and box are described below.

- Rotate 90° will flip the image 90 degrees to the right.
- Save to Disk will prompt the file directory so the image can be saved as a bitmap file.
- Flip Horizontally will flip the image to the left creating a mirror effect.
- Flip Vertically will flip the image upside down creating a mirror effect.
- Delete will remove the image from the "Pictures in this Calendar" list.
- **Purge** will purge the previewed image and any formatting adjustments made to it.
- **Brightness** will increase or decrease the intensity difference between the lighter and darker elements of the image.
- Fit to Area is used to enlarge or shrinks the image to fit the selected area as much as possible while keeping the image's original proportions (Proportional), to fill the entire area regardless of the proportions (Complete), or leave the image as is (No change). You can only select one of these options at one time.
- **Tile** produces the picture as in a tile format.
- **Center** places the picture in the center of the selected area.
- You can select either Tile or Center, but not both at the same time. Likewise, you cannot select Tile if you have selected a Fit to Area option.
 - **Transparent** allows you to select a color (e.g., background color) to make transparent (i.e., remove from the picture). To the left of this toggle box is a field labeled "Transparent Color." The color displayed in this field indicates which color is transparent. To change the color, either click the mouse button in the color field to retrieve the Color dialog box to select a color, or click on the dropper icon, then point to the color in the previewed picture that you want to be transparent.
 - Link to the File allows you to save the file *path* (not the actual file) in your calendar file.



Pictures require a large amount of memory. Saving them in your file may slow the speed of your system as well as occupy a large amount of your hard drive space.

The last formatting tool located between the buttons and check boxes is used to pan around the image. Hold down the mouse button and move the cursor to view different parts of the image.

Apply any formatting properties to the picture, and then select the ok button on the Add Event dialog box to associate the image with your category.

ASSOCIATING CATEGORIES AND CALENDARS

Located to the left of each category listed in the Categories dialog box is a check box. Placing a check in this box associates the category with the active calendar. Likewise, removing the check mark will disassociate the category and the active calendar.

Once all categories have been associated with your calendar, categories are assigned to events using the drop-down menu accessible from the "Category" field on the Event List or from the Event tab of the Add Event Dialog box.

Adding Events to Your Event List

And now for the big moment... You are ready to add your events to your calendar! Events can be added to your calendars using either of two methods: You can add them directly to your Event List (a new feature of *Calendar Creator*), or add them using the Event tab of the Add Event dialog box. This dialog box is accessed either by selecting the ADD EVENT item from the Event main menu, by expanding an event line in your list by clicking on the category icon, or by double-clicking the mouse button while it is positioned on a calendar view screen. This section discusses each of these methods of entering events on your calendar.

To add events directly to the Event List:

- As you select a blank line in the Event List, your event text can be entered directly in each field. Press the TAB key to move between fields.
- Either select the Add Event item from the Events main menu, click the mouse button once while it is positioned on the icon located on the far right side of the Event List, or double-click the mouse button while it is positioned in a time field of a calendar view.

The Add Event dialog box will appear with the Event tab selected. This tab is used to add your event information. You will notice that some of the fields in this box are similar to those listed on the Event List. When you enter information into these fields, it is carried over to the list (and vice versa).

2exception	New Event			
		Duration	ta OMina 🚍	*
,Aktoriki	None 💌	Default	Phone	Sglect Mgdly Remoye

Add Event Dialog Box Showing the Event Tab

The "Description" field is used to enter a description of the event. You can add as much detail as you want in this field. It will appear in an abbreviated form on the Event List and on your calendar; the overflow information can be printed as an additional page accompanying your calendar and/or your event list.

The "Start Date" field is used to indicate the starting date of the event. This field is automatically populated with the date currently selected on your calendar (or today's date).

The "Repeat Until," "Repeat For," and "Repeat Rule" fields are used to repeat an event at specified dates/times. Repeated events can be entered using this method, or they can be entered using the ADVANCED REPEATS RULE button, which is discussed in detail in the "Repeating Events" section of this chapter.

- □ Enter the starting date of your event. To select the date, you can access the Quick Date dialog box by clicking on the box to the left of the date field.
- □ If you are repeating the event, set your repeat rule by selecting one of the repeat options from the drop-down list of the "Repeat Rule" field.

Once you have set the repeat rule, the "Repeat Until" and "Repeat For" fields become active. The "Repeat Until" field should be used when you know the specific date when the event ends. This date can be selected using the Quick Repeat dialog box, which is accessed by clicking on the box to the left of the date be used to repeat the event in increments such as days, weeks, month, etc. The increments are determined by the repeat rule.

□ Choose either the "Repeat Until" option or the "Repeat For" option to determine the ending date of the repeated event. Only one of these options can be selected.

The "Start Time" and "End Time" fields are used to indicate the starting and ending times of the event, respectively. (See, *Displaying Start and End Times* following in this chapter.)

The "Duration" fields display the difference between the starting and ending times. You can set the times using the arrow buttons beside each field, or you can use the "Duration" fields by entering the data in "Days," "Hours," or "Minutes" fields. The input will be carried over to any corresponding fields.

The "Category" field is used to indicate the category of the event. The drop-down category list will be populated with the default categories provided with *Calendar Creator*, plus any user-defined categories you have created.

The "Priority" field is used to indicate the priority of this event in relation to other events on your Event List.

The "Participants" field is used to add the names of people who are involved in the event. This field directly relates to your Address Book. (Please refer to *Chapter 4, Address Book* for information on populating your Address Book.)

□ To add participants to your event, choose the SELECT button in the Participants area.

The Participant Selection dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Name John Public John Snith James Jones	Default Phone 123-454-7080 555-558-5585 444-123-4587	2 20 4	Name *	Dates Phone

Participant Selection Dialog Box with Sample Names

Move names to the Selected Contacts column by selecting the name in the Available Contacts column, then activating the right arrow button located between the two lists. The right double-arrow button can be used to move an entire group to the Selected Contacts side. Select the oκ button when you are finished.

Likewise, names can be removed by selecting the name, then activating the left arrow button located between the two lists. The left double-arrow button can be used to move an entire group from the Selected Contacts side. You can also use the REMOVE button on the Add Event dialog box to remove selected names.

■ Enter the requested information as it applies to your event. When you are finished, continue reading to add formatting and other controls to the event or click on the ok button to add the event to your Event List and Calendar.

DISPLAYING START AND END TIMES

Before the start and end times for any single event or event category will appear on your calendar, the start/end time checkboxes must be selected in the Miscellaneous tab on the Layout Object Properties dialog box. This enables the start/end options for the *entire* calendar grid. When an event is entered, the default value (12:00 am) for the start and/or end times must be changed or the start/end times will not be displayed on your calendar.

- □ To display the start and end times of one *specific* event on your calendar, select the start/end time checkboxes on the Style tab in the Event Properties dialog box.
- □ To display the start and end times of one *specific* category on your calendar, select the start/end time checkboxes on the Style tab in the Categories Properties dialog box.

REPEATING EVENTS USING THE ADVANCED REPEATS RULE

This section explains how to manage events that are repeated in a more complex manner than is discussed above (i.e., repeat for extended years, have exceptions, or should be moved for weekend occurrences). These settings are controlled using the Advanced Repeat Rule button on the Add Event dialog box.

□ Access the Event Properties dialog box using one of the methods discussed earlier in this chapter in *Accessing the Event List*. Then, click on the ADVANCED REPEAT RULE button.

The Repeats dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Set repeat accurance rule Start Date: [DGI/341635] Bepark Unit [10/15/1997] (* Year, Hanth, Week, Weekdap	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 3 10 11 12 13 14 5 16 17 18
Egmy AllYeats AllMonths AllDays Agrid S AllDays Agrid S AllDays Agrid S AllDays Agrid S AllDays AllDays All Agrid S AllDays AllDays AllDays All AllDays All AllDays All AllDays All AllDays All AllDays All All AllDays All A	19 20 21 22 24 25 25 27 28 26 30 31
Select Years, Months, and Days above	Weekend occurrences

Repeats Dialog Box

The first step to setting the repeat is to define the repeat occurrence rule. This is done by selecting one of the three repeat options, or manually entering the dates in the "Start Date" field (indicates the date of the first occurrence of the event) and the "Repeat Until" field (indicates the last day the event will be repeated).

The icons beside each of these fields can be activated to access the Quick Date dialog box. For further instructions on using this box, please refer to Chapter 2, Getting Started.

If you choose to indicate the repeat dates using one of the three repeat options, the lower half of the box changes according to the option selected. Each option is discussed below.

- When you select the "Year, Month, Day" item, three columns will appear listing year numbers, month names, and days in dates (1–31). Checking the "All Days," "All Months," or "All Years" items will selected all times listed.
- When you select the "Year, Month, Week, Weekday" item, four columns will appear listing year number, month names, week numbers (1–5), and day names (Monday through Sunday). Checking the "All Days," "All Months," or "All Years" items will select all the times listed.
- When you select the third option, "Every," three fields are displayed prompting you to indicate increments of time (e.g., 4 months, 5 years, 2 days, etc.) and to select which days, by date (1–31), you want the event to repeat.

The right portion of the Repeats box displays a month calendar layout. This calendar is provided for you to indicate any exceptions to the "Repeat Occurrence Rule." Exception dates are selected by clicking on the date in the calendar. As you do this, the dates are listed in the drop-down menu of the "Exceptions" field. If there are no exceptions to the rule, this field remains set to the default value of "No Exceptions."

You can change the month displayed using the arrows located on either side of the month name. The two single arrows change the calendar dates to the next (right arrow) and previous (left arrow) month. The two double arrows change the calendar dates to the same month in the next (right arrows) or previous (left arrows) year.

The "Weekend Occurrences" field is used to automatically move the event to another day when its repeated date falls on a weekend. Possible options are Monday, Friday, the closest weekday, delete the event occurrence, or move all occurrences to weekends only.

□ Following the instructions above, set the event to repeat as needed. Then, select the oĸ button to save the changes.

Adding Styles to Events

Once you have "defined" your event, you can apply formatting styles to the event text to enhance its appearance on your calendar. Text style can initially be determined for an event by its category (if you have defined the category a style). However, the category style can be overridden using the controls on the Style tab of the Add Event dialog box.

- The default font style for the Event List is set to MS Sans Serif 10. This cannot be changed using this tab, which only controls the event text as it appears on your calendar.
- Access the Add Event dialog box using one of the methods discussed in *Accessing the Event List* in this chapter. Then, select the Style tab.

The Style tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

E.	C Barre event	Cillo	Nore	-	
Ekdre Cegler	F F Show Tige		None None		
Capit	Langle				
fortz.	19 vacation	20 vacation	21 vication	٦	

Add Events Dialog Box Showing the Style Tab

The Text style options are located in the right portion of the Style tab and include Justification, All Caps, and a FONTS button.

- Justification is used to position the text to the left, right, or center of the cell.
- All Caps, when checked, will change the font to appear in ALL CAPITAL LETTERS.
- The Forts button is used to access the Fort dialog box, which contains the available forts and fort styles.

The Event Effects portion of this tab allows you to indicate whether the text should be placed on your calendar as a Box Event or a Banner Event. The "Shading" and "Color" fields are used to add shading and color to the event text. The "Border Style" and "Border Color" fields can be used to control the border that appears around your event text on your calendar. The "Show Shadow" box can be checked to add a shadow effect around your event text. A preview of your customized style will appear in the "Sample" area as you make changes.

To change the font, click on the FONTS button.

The Font dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Font			? ×
Eont: Arial	Font style: Regular	<u>S</u> ize: 10	ОК
Arial Arial Black Arial Black Arial Narrow Book Antiqua Book Antiqua Bookshelf Symbol 1 Bookshelf Symbol 2 ✓	Regular All Italic Bold Bold Italic	10 • 11 12 14 16 18 20 •	Cancel
Effects Stri <u>k</u> eout Underline <u>C</u> olor: Black	Sample AaBbYyZ Seript:	z	
	Western	•	

Sample Font Dialog Box

This dialog box operates as it does on other Windows-based applications.

- **Font** lists the fonts available with *Calendar Creator*.
- Font Style lists the styles available with each font.
- **Size** lists the sizes available with each font.
- **Effects** allows you to add strikeout marks or underlines to the selected font, as well as select the color of your text.
- Sample shows a preview of the selected font with the applied settings.
- Script lists the available language scripts for the specified font.
- Select the desired settings, then save the changes by clicking on the ok button.

The dialog box will close and the font and style will be applied to the event (on the calendar—not the Event List). All other events in that category, however, will continue to appear with the Category style applied.

Associating Pictures with Your Events

As was discussed earlier in this chapter, you can assign pictures to your events. When you do so, the picture will appear in the Icon column on your Event List.

□ Access the Add Event dialog box using one of the methods discussed in *Accessing the Event List.* Then, select the Picture tab.

The Picture tab will resemble the screen shown below.

file period	Delast	*	C WINDOWS/DES	KTDP/Oipat for CC5/AN
Pic Pic	tures in this cal	lenda:		Contra La Contra
0 : No	Picture			1.
ê 0 : Bi	d06 wrwl		1	1
A . 0: A	anele.veril			朝朝
0 : 46	free oteg			m
		Contraction of the		
Bone	Episte 30			
Browse. Save to dek.	Ectate 90 File Horz		Fit picture in area	CONTRACTOR OF STREET,
		Transparent color		File Pipele

Add Event Dialog Box Showing the Picture Tab

No picture files will be listed when you first access this tab. As you import these files, they will be added to the "Picture in this Calendar" list.

Pictures are added to the "Picture in this Calendar" list by using the BROWSE feature (shown opened in the following figure) to scan your files. Refer to your Windows user's guide if you are unsure how to search your files.

Open						? X
Look ye	C15		•	目目		100
Art Sanpies Toreloto						
File gave File: of type	Al Picture Files			gam Cancel		
Fornat Dimension Extern		Date and Time File Size			Fépidure in anno C Epoperienal C Epopiere C No change	□]ê 17 Çestar 17 Engecille

Open Dialog Box Used to Browse Files

□ Browse your files to find your pictures, then click on the OPEN button.

This will place the picture file in the Pictures in this Calendar list.

The "Time Period" field located at the top of this box can be used to place the picture next to the item on your Event List for a specified time period only.

The image selected in your "Pictures in this calendar" list can be formatted using the buttons located in the lower, left portion of the tab and the check boxes located in the lower, right portion of the box. The functions of each button and box are described following.

- Rotate 90° will flip the image 90 degrees to the right.
- Save to Disk will prompt the file directory so the image can be saved as a bitmap file.
- Flip Horizontally will flip the image to the left creating a mirror effect.
- Flip Vertically will flip the image upside down creating a mirror effect.
- Delete will remove the image from the "Pictures in this Calendar" list.
- **Purge** will purge the previewed image and any formatting adjustments made to it.
- **Brightness** will increase or decrease the intensity difference between the lighter and darker elements of the image.

- Fit to Area is used to enlarge or shrinks the image to fit the selected area as much as possible while keeping the image's original proportions (Proportional), to fill the entire area regardless of the proportions (Complete), or leave the image as is (No change). You can only select one of these options at one time.
- **Tile** produces the picture as in a tile format.
- Center places the picture in the center of the selected area.
- You can select either Tile or Center, but not both at the same time. Likewise, you cannot select Tile if you have selected a Fit to Area option.
- **Transparent** allows you to select a color (e.g., background color) to make transparent (i.e., remove from the picture). To the left of this toggle box is a field labeled "Transparent Color." The color displayed in this field indicates which color is transparent. To change the color, either click the mouse button in the color field to retrieve the Color dialog box to select a color, or click on the dropper icon, then point to the color in the previewed picture that you want to be transparent.
- Link to the File allows you to save the file *path* (not the actual file) in your calendar file.

Pictures require a large amount of memory. Saving them in your file may slow the speed of your system as well as occupy a large amount of your hard drive space.

The last formatting tool located between the buttons and check boxes is used to pan around the image. Hold the mouse button and move the cursor to view different parts of the image.

Apply any formatting properties to the picture, then select the oκ button on the Add Event dialog box to insert the image on your Event List.

Applying Functions to Events

The Functions tab is used to apply text functions. Text functions are defined as the variable text that is supplied by the program to be added to event descriptions and various calendar elements. To further explain, refer to this example. If you apply the "&date" function to an event or text cell, the date displayed will be proportional to the actual date. If you switch the calendar view using the previous or next period arrows, the date displayed will be automatically adjusted.

To apply a function to an Event:

Select the Functions tab from the Add Event dialog box.
The Functions tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.



Add Event Dialog Box Showing the Function Tab

Select the desired topic and function from the each list. As you position the cursor on each of the functions available, a complete description of its function will be provided. Use these descriptions as a guide to help you select the right function for your needs.

□ Once you have selected the topic and functions, apply them by activating the PASTE FUNCTION button. Then, save your changes by activating the ok button.

Attaching Notes to Events

The Notes tab is used to attach additional information to an event. This additional information is indicated on your Event List by a symbol resembling a note-like symbol that appears in the "Notes" column. It is indicated on your Calendar by this same icon. Moving the cursor over the icon in either case will display the noted information in a pop-up box.

□ Access the Add Event dialog box using one of the methods discussed in *Creating and Maintaining Event Categories*. Then, select the Notes tab.

The Notes tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

nes New Roman	- 1	1 *	BZUD	E = =
				1000
		_		
				_

Add Event Dialog Box Showing the Notes Tab

This box contains a blank area where your notational information can be typed. You can use the formatting controls (font style and size, bold, italicized, underlined, color and justification) to add style to your text if desired.

□ Type your note in the indicated area, applying formatting controls if desired. When you are finished, select the ok button to save the information.

Again, your notes are indicated by a note-like symbol that appears in the event cell and in the "Notes" column on your Event List.

Setting the Alarm to Accompany Events

The Alarm tab is used to play a sound, launch an application, or compose a message that will indicate the occurrence of a specific event. *Calendar Creator* operates in conjunction with *Calendar Creator* Scheduler when using alarms. Therefore, please refer to the "*Using Calendar Creator Scheduler*" section of this chapter for more information on how this process works.

□ Access the Add Event dialog box using one of the methods discussed in *Creating and Maintaining Event Categories*. Then, select the Alarm tab. The Alarm tab will appear and resemble the following screen.

est Eble Picture Functions Notes IF Along C. Agditional Alam Alons Settings	Event Occurs on 10/14/1997, 12 00 PM
	Bit I g Mos C Batas Event
Alam Sound	Bionus. Let
Alam Launch	
гГ	Broger Tget
Alam Message	
P New Event	

Add Event Dialog Box Showing the Alarm Tab

When you first access this screen, the Alarm settings will be disabled. You must select the "Alarm" option to activate them.

Select the "Enable Alarm" option to enable the alarm settings.

Once the settings are enabled, you can indicate using the "Hrs" and "Mins" fields when in relation to the event date/time you want the alarm to occur. These fields work in conjunction with the "Before Event" or "After Event" fields to set the actual alarm time.

Indicate the time when the alarm should occur.

Three different types of alarms can be set: Sound, which will produce a noise at the time of the event; Launch, which will cause a specified program application to be launched at the time of the event; and Message, which will produce a user-defined message across your screen at the time of the event. You can select apply one, two, or all three of these types of alarms.

To set the Sound alarm:

Select the alarm by placing an "X" in the "Alarm Sound" field. Then, use the standard Windows Browse feature to select the sound file that will be used. (If you are unsure of how to use the Browse feature, please refer to your Windows user's guide for instructions.) Once you have linked the sound file, you can test it by activating the TEST button.

To set the Launch alarm:

❑ Select the alarm by placing an "X" in the "Alarm Launch" field. Then, use the standard Windows Browse feature to select the program to be launched when the event occurs. (If you are unsure of how to use the Browse feature, please refer to your Windows Users Guide for instructions.) Once you have linked the program file, you can test it by activating the TEST button.

To set the Message alarm:

□ Select the alarm by placing an "X" in the "Alarm Message" field. Then, simply enter the text that you would like to appear on your screen when the event occurs.

Sorting Your Event List

Once you have added an assortment of events to your Event List, you may find that is cumbersome to scroll through your list. Therefore, you can sort your Event List so that only specific information is displayed.

There are two methods of sorting: using the Category Type indicator field or using the Sort item in the Events main menu

The Category Type Indicator field is used to list a specific category of events, such as Birthdays, Meetings, To Do, etc. Select a category using the drop-down menu for the Category Type Indicator field (as shown below).



Example of a Drop-Down Menu for the Category Type Indicator Field

The calendar's category options will be listed. You can select a single category type to display events only associated with that type, or you can select "All" to view all events associated with all categories.

The other means of sorting your events is by using the Sort item in the Events main menu. This option enables you to sort by start date, by description, by priority, by category, or by start time. When you select one of these options (e.g., start date), an up or down arrow will appear at the top of the column that you are sorting (e.g., an arrow will appear in the Date column header). Clicking on this arrow will reverse the order of listing (e.g., from chronological order to reverse chronological order).

Querying Your Event List

The Query feature makes if easy for you to locate a specific event in your Event List. For example, if your Birthday's category contains 25 events, and you want to search specifically for Aunt Ruthie's birthday, you can enter "Aunt Ruthie" in the "Text in Description" field. Only her birthday will appear in your Event List.

□ To access the Event Query dialog box, either select the Query item from the Category Type Indicator drop-down menu, or select the Query item from the Event main menu located at the top of the screen.

The Event Query dialog box, will appear.

Event Query	? ×
Display events chosen b	у to
I text in description:	
Priority:	
Category:	Birthday (Actors.ce3) (Actor General To Do Meeting
ОК	Cancel <u>H</u> elp

Event Query Dialog Box

This box has four means of querying your events: by a date range, by text in the description, by priority, or by category type. Choose one of these methods by clicking the mouse button to place a check mark beside the method. Then, enter the information that will define your search criteria.

The Event Report and Event Report 2-Column Views

The Event Report and Event Report 2-Column views allow you to view and print a report of all, or just selected events in your event list. You can show any information associated with the event; such as titles, start/end times, dates, notes, etc. Using this view, you can customize the information displayed in your Event Report view or Event Report 2-Column view. This will also allow you to select specific information for printout on the Event Report.

To use the Event Report view:

□ Select "Event Report" view in the View Type indicator field. When displaying the "Event Report 2-Column" view, only one column will be displayed onscreen. However, this will not affect the printout.



Event Report View

To format your Event Report:

Right-click on the event grid. Select Properties from the drop-down menu, and use the Style tab located on the Layout Object Properties dialog box. Using the Miscellaneous tab, you can choose to display start/end times, notes, or small calendars with your Event Report printout.

For instructions on printing reports from your Event List, please refer to *Chapter* 6, *Printing Event Reports*.

Using the Scheduler to Activate Your Alarms

Calendar Creator operates in conjunction with *Calendar Creator* Scheduler when activating alarms. Therefore, it is important that you understand the basic concepts about the application. *Calendar Creator* Scheduler is a stand-alone application that is automatically loaded on your computer when you install *Calendar Creator*. It is placed in your start-up folder and appears on your desktop as a clock-like icon (C) that appears in the lower-right corner of your menu bar.

When you save events files that contain alarms, *Calendar Creator* prompts you to also save the file on *Calendar Creator* Scheduler. This automatic process is activated when you accept at the prompt. Event alarms will not become active unless they are saved to *Calendar Creator* Scheduler.

These alarm settings can be viewed and modified, if needed, using the *Calendar Creator* Scheduler screen. Additionally, new alarm that isn't associated with your event list files can be set using this screen.

Access the scheduler screen by double-clicking on the *Calendar Creator* Scheduler icon in your menu bar.

The Calendar Creator Scheduler screen will open and resemble the figure below.

iler - Alarms	
Schethed Hans Its	Canari Tana (1994)
Tex	Eventual Conneed Sou
	J
	Spitech Alassa Quae
	Scheduled.Hampiter

Calendar Creator Scheduler Screen

The alarms that have been set using your event files will appear in this list. Each alarm can be modified from this list, if needed, by selecting the Modify item from the Alarm main menu. You can also delete or pause alarms by selecting the appropriate item from this Alarm main menu while the alarm in issue is selected.

When an alarm is paused. The PAUSE button toggles to RESUME ALARM.

To set a new alarm (not associated with *Calendar Creator*):

Select the Add Alarm item from the Alarms main menu.

This will display a version of the Events dialog that contains three tabs: Event, Alarms, and Repeat. These three tabs operate similarly to the tabs described in the *Event Dialog* section of this chapter. Therefore, please refer to the corresponding sections of this chapter for instructions on using these tabs.

The exception to this is the Event tab, which differs in that the Scheduler's Event tab does not contain a Contact group.

Additional controls that can be applied to *Calendar Creator* Scheduler using the File and View main menus, are discussed below.

The **File** main menu contains four submenu items used to perform the following functions.

- **Reload All** polls all the files in Scheduler's list (use View/File list to see this list or to add or remove items from it). It is updated automatically.
- **Revert** reloads the last saved version of the local file list (see explanation below).
- Save Local saves the Local file. Revert is disabled after saving until a change in the Local file is made. (See the paragraph that follows for an explanation of "local files.")
- Close exits the Scheduler window, but does not exit the program.

The **View** main menu contains four submenu items that are used to perform the following function.

- Add displays the standard Windows Open File dialog box that can be used to select a calendar file to add to Scheduler.
- **Remove** deletes the Calendar file from the list and removes its alarmed events from Scheduler's alarms list.
- **OK** dismisses the dialog and accepts the changes.
- **Cancel** dismisses the dialog and does not keep any changes made.
- Help displays the Scheduler's Help and About boxes.

When you add alarms settings to the Scheduler program, these are considered to be "local" alarms. Local alarms differ from the alarms that are set up using *Calendar Creator* in that local alarms don't have to be *linked*. The alarms set up using your Event List *must be* linked.

Properly set up alarms will be automatically activated without requiring you to open the *Calendar Creator* Scheduler or *Calendar Creator* program.

Using the Address Book

Calendar Creator provides you with everything you need to help keep your busy life on schedule. One way to stay on schedule is to save time by having needed information in one place. *Calendar Creator's* Address Book feature helps you keep your schedule and your personal and business contacts in one easy-to-use, electronic format.

The Address Book works exactly like a real Address Book by storing your business and personal addresses, phone numbers, fax numbers, pager numbers, and cell phone numbers in one location. But, it goes beyond the abilities of the typical address book in that it can also perform the following functions. The *Calendar Creator* Address Book can:

- Categorize your contacts into Groups; such as your Exercise Group, your daughters Girl Scout Group, your Best Friends, your Business Clients, etc.
- Store e-mail addresses and Web sites.
- Send e-mail to those in your address list directly from the Address List screen.
- Link names from your address list to your scheduled events.
- Telephone people on your list directly from the Address List screen.

As an extra feature, you can choose to sort your Address List in a variety of ways so that you only see the information that is useful to you at that time.

This chapter explains how to access the Address List, add, modify and remove contacts, categorize and sort contacts, send e-mail, and make phone calls from the Address List screen.

Accessing the Address Book

The Address Book is one of the four main views of *Calendar Creator* (the other three being the Event List, the Clip Art screen, and the seven Calendar views). It is accessed using any of the following methods.

□ Access the Address Book screen by activating the Address Book button in your toolbar (see *Chapter 2, Screen Definitions for Calendar Creator*), by selecting the Address View option from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen, or by selecting the Address List item from the Active View Indicator field.

If a contact has been previously added to your list, you can also retrieve their data by double-clicking the mouse button while the cursor is positioned on the item in the Address List.

The Address List will display in one of the three Address List views: Small Icons, Large Icons, or Details. The following figures show examples of the same Address List displayed in each of these views.



New York Babe Ruth Bugs Bunny Cleveland Elmer Fudd Donald Duck

Address List in "Large Icon" View



Address List in "Detail" View

To select your view of the Address List:

Select the View item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen. Then, either select the Small Icons, Large Icons, or Details item.

You will notice in the examples above, how the contacts in each view have one of two icons beside them (i.e., either profile icon or two profiles facing each other). These distinctive icons indicate whether the contact is either a single contact (profile icon) or a group of contacts (two profiles facing each other).

Also, in each of the examples above, you will notice an alphabetized tab located to the left side of the Address List. This tab provides one of the methods of sorting your address list. It is discussed in detail in *Sorting Your Address List*, along with the other methods of sorting. (Displaying this tab is optional and can be disabled by following the instructions in the *Data Display Tab* section of this chapter.)

Adding Contacts to Your Address List

Adding contacts to your Address List is quick and easy. They are recorded using the Address Book Details dialog box. This dialog box has five tabs: Contact, Home, Business, Events, and Notes. The Contact tab is used to add the person's

name and contact information. The Home tab is used to add the person's home address information. The Business tab is used to record a business name and address. The Events tab is used to display the events in which the contact is scheduled to participate. And the Notes tab is used to record notational information about the contact. Each of these tabs is discussed in the following sections.

CONTACT TAB

The Contact tab is used to record and maintain the person's name information. It also stores their e-mail and telephone/pager number(s) and can be used to automatically send e-mail or dial the indicated number.

To access the Contact tab:

□ Select the New Contact item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen or simply double-click the mouse button while it is positioned in an empty area of your Address List.

The Address Book Details dialog box will appear showing the Contact tab. The figure below illustrates this screen.

	Middle	-	Paples	
ut [Nickhiane			
E-Mail			5463 - C	
EMail Desciption	*	Address		Add
				Hadly
				Datad
			11	Send
Phone-Pages				
Description T			Photo Namber	Add
				Madly
				Renove
~ ~ ~				Default
+1				Daal

Address Book Details Dialog Box Showing the Contact Tab

The "First," "Last," "Middle," and "Prefix" fields are used to indicate the name of the contact (e.g., Mr. John B. Jon). The "Nickname" field is used to enter the person's nickname, if it applies (e.g., JJ). You can enter as little or as much information as needed in these fields.

Below these name fields are the E-Mail and Phone/Pager lists. They are provided to maintain the person's e-mail address and phone/pager numbers, respectively. This information can be relayed to the Microsoft[®] Exchange[®] e-mail software or your modem using the SEND and DIAL buttons.

□ **To add e-mail information**, select the ADD button beside the "E-Mail List" or simply double-click the mouse button while it is positioned in an empty area in the list.

Add New EMail Ad	dress	? ×
<u>E</u> Mail Address:		
EMail <u>D</u> escription:		
ОК	Cancel	Help

Add New E-Mail Address Dialog Box

The "E-Mail" field is used to enter a description of the address, such as the person's name or e-mail location. The "E-Mail Address" field is used to enter their e-mail address.

C Enter the e-mail information and address, then select the oκ button to save the data.

The data will display in the "E-Mail Description" and "Address" fields on the Contact tab. Repeat this step as needed to add additional addresses.

□ **To add telephone/pager number information**, select the ADD button located beside the Phone/Pager list or simply double-click the mouse button while it is positioned in an empty area in the list.

Add New Phone N	umber	? ×
Phone Number:		_
<u>D</u> escription:		
ОК	Cancel	<u>H</u> elp

Add New Phone Number Dialog Box

The "Phone" field is used to indicate the person's three-digit area code and sevendigit phone number. The "Description" field is provided to store information relevant to the listed number. You can enter as much or as little information in these fields as applies.

C Enter the desired telephone/pager information in the appropriate fields, then select the oκ button to save the data.

The data will display in the "Description" and "Phone Number" fields in the Phone/Pager list. Repeat this process as needed to add additional numbers.

- **To modify e-mail or phone/pager number information**, select the item in the appropriate list, then activate the MODIFY button located beside the list or double-click the mouse button. The person's information will be displayed on the Contact tab. Make the necessary modifications, then save the data by activating the ok button.
- □ **To remove e-mail or phone/pager number information**, select the item in the appropriate list. Then, activate the REMOVE button next to the list. The information will be deleted.
- □ **To select an e-mail address or phone/pager number as the default**, select the item in the appropriate list. Then, activate the DEFAULT button next to the list. This will mark the address or number as the default.
- □ **To send an e-mail message**, select the address in the E-Mail List, then activate the sEND button. Microsoft[®] Exchange[®] will be activated, and the address will be imported to that appropriate address field.
- **To automatically dial a number**, select the number from the Phone/ Pager List, then activate the DIAL button.

You can remove contacts from your Address List by highlighting the name in your Address List, then selecting the Delete Selected item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen.

HOME TAB

The Home tab of the Address Information dialog box is used to maintain home address information.

To access the Home tab:

□ Select the New Contact item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen or simply double-click the mouse button while it is positioned in an empty area of your Address List. Then, select the Home tab. If the contact is already in your address book, double-click on the item to access the Address Book Details dialog box.

The Home tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

d9ee 1			_		
48+11 2 Ay			_		
lafe: Ioardiy	-	20	_		
Add Address	Mg2.17		-	Dave	

Address Book Details Dialog Box Showing the Home Tab

- Enter the person's home address information (up to two street addresses, city, state, zip, and country). If they have a Web site, you can record their site address in the "Web" field. Selecting the OPEN button located next to the "Web" field can access this site. Save the data by activating the OK button.
- It should be noted that the certain fields on this tab can be pre-populated with default data by entering this data on the Default Data tab of the Address Book Options dialog box.

BUSINESS TAB

The Business tab of the Address Information dialog box is used to maintain business address information.

To access the Business tab:

Select the New Contact item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen or simply double-click the mouse button while it is positioned in an empty area of your Address List. Then, select the Business tab. If the contact is already in your address book, double-click on the item to access the Address Book Details dialog box.

The Business tab will resemble the figure shown below.

Cencery Department President	
Parker	
Addem 1:	
Addeni 2	
Clay:	
Stere Zp	
Country	

Address Book Details Dialog Box Showing the Business Tab

- Enter the name of the company with which the contact is associated in the "Company" field. Then, enter the Department name and their title or position in the "Department" and "Position" fields.
- Next, enter the person's business address information (up to two street addresses, city, state, zip, and country). If they have a Web site, you can record their site address in the "Web" field. Selecting the OPEN button located next to the "Web" field can access this site. Save the data by activating the oκ button.
- It should be noted that the certain fields on this tab can be pre-populated with default data by entering this data on the Default Data tab of the Address Book Options dialog box.

EVENTS TAB

The Events tab lists all events in which the person is scheduled to participate. It can also be used to disassociate the contact from the event.

To access the Events tab:

□ Select the New Contact item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen or simply double-click the mouse button while it is positioned in an empty area of your Address List. Then, select the Event tab. If the contact is already in your address book, double-click on the item to access the Address Book Details dialog box.

The Events tab will resemble the figure shown below.

ken Book Details				1
ordast Hone State	is Events Nomi I			
Decoption	Calegory	Proty	Shart Duke	Beneve
•]				tç.
		ůx.	Erer	Help

Address Book Details Dialog Box Showing the Events Tab

When this screen opens, any event in which the person is participating will be listed. The check box located to the left of the event information can be disabled (by removing the check mark) to disassociate the person and the event.

To remove event information:

Activate the REMOVE button while the event is selected in the list.

The event will no longer appear in the list.

NOTES TAB

The Notes tab can be used to store notational information with the person's file.

To access the Notes tab:

□ Select the New Contact item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen or simply double-click the mouse button while it is positioned in an empty area of your Address List. Then, select the Notes tab. If the contact is already in your address book, double-click on the item to access the Address Book Details dialog box.

The Notes tab will resemble the figure shown below.

dens Back Details		1
Costaut Hone Burness Ev		
Tanes New Planan	2112 0/0	RESE
r		
	06	Case Hep
		1949

Address Book Details Dialog Box Showing the Notes Tab

This tab contains a blank area where the notational information can be entered. You can use the formatting controls (font style and size, bold, italicized, underlined, color and justification) to add style to your text, if desired.

□ Type your note in the indicated area, applying formatting controls if desired. When you are finished, select the ok button to save the information.

Creating Groups

As previously discussed, *Calendar Creator* now gives you the capability to store your contacts who share similar associations (e.g., company softball team) as Groups. Groups should be created *after* each member has been recorded in your Address Book as a contact. Once this is done, they can be grouped using the Address Group dialog box.

Access Address Group dialog box by selecting the New Group item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen. If the group has been previously established, you can access it by positioning the cursor on the item in the Address List, then double-click on the item.

The Address Group dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Address Group			? ×
<u>G</u> roup Name: <u>New Grou</u> Members:	р	-	
Name 🔻	Default Phone	Default E-Mail	<u>S</u> elect
👮 John Public 👮 John Smith	123-456-7890 555-555-5555		<u>R</u> emove
👮 James Jones	444-123-4567		<u> </u>
•			
<u>N</u> otes:			
[OK Cancel	<u>H</u> elp	

Address Group Dialog Box with Sample Data

- It should be noted that your dialog box might display in the Large Icon view depending on the Address view you have chosen.
- □ Enter the name of the group in the "Group Name" field. This name will appear in the Address List as the contact name. Relevant notes about the group can be entered in the "Notes" field, if desired.
- Simply select the ADD button to link contacts to the group.

The Participant Selection dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

vailable Contact::	1.0.1.00		Selected Contect	-	
Naros 🔻	Default Phone	>	Name 🔻		Detault Phone
🖉 John Public	123-456-7890				
👰 John Smith	995-555-9995	>>			
🖉 James Jones	444-123-4567				
		<			
		66			
4		i aut	1.1		
(•	1		1

Participant Selection Dialog Box with Sample Data

This box is divided into two lists. The Available Contacts side will list everyone in your current address book. The Selected Contacts side will list those contacts that are group members.

- The arrow symbols in the list headers can be used to sort the names in ascending or descending alphabetical order by simply clicking in the header field.
- □ To associate these contacts with the group, select the name from the Available Contacts list, then click on the right arrow symbol between the two lists. The name will appear in the Selected Contacts list. Likewise, you can remove contacts from the group by selecting the item, then clicking on the left arrow symbol.
- Once you have assigned your group members, save the data by activating the oκ button.

The selected contacts will appear in your Group Members List. Once you have defined your group, you can send e-mail to your group members using the E-MAIL button on the Address Group screen. This will launch the MS Exchange[™] application that can be used to send the mail to each group member at one time.

You can remove individual names from the Group list by selecting the REMOVE button on the Address Group box while the cursor is highlighting the name. You can also modify a group member's information directly from this screen by selecting the member, then activating the MODIFY button. The Address Book Details dialog box will appear. Groups can be removed at any time from your Address List by highlighting the group name, then choosing the Delete Selected Item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen.

Sending E-Mail

As mentioned in previous sections, *Calendar Creator* gives you the ability to send e-mail to your contacts. This can be done from the Contacts tab of the Address Book Detail dialog box, from the Address Group dialog box, or using the Send E-Mail option on your Address main menu. Using any of these methods will launch the Microsoft Exchange[™] software application, which is used to compose and send your mail.

Setting Your Address Book Options

Your Address Book can be customized to meet your personal needs using the Address Book Options tabs. These tabs (General and Default Data) allow you to indicate what information you want to display in you address list, indicate the name display sequence, and enter default data that will be provided when creating new contacts. These tabs are discussed below.

GENERAL TAB

The General tab, shown below, is used to control the presence of the alphabetized tab and the data tips, as well as control the name sorting method and the columns that appear in your Address List.

To access the General tab:

Select the Options item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen. Then, select the General tab.

The Address Book Options dialog box will appear with the General tab selected, as shown in the following figure.

Address Book Options	×
General Default Data Address Book Options Show Alphabet Tab I Show Data Tips I Grid Lines	
Name Field Sorting: C Last, First Stuart Schuessler First Last First Middle Last	
Please choose the columns you would like to see in the Address List: Available: Displayed: Prefix NickName Company Position Department Home Address1 Home Address2 Home City Home State	
OK Cancel Help	

Address Book Options Dialog Box Showing the General Tab

- □ **To display the Alphabetic tab** on the Address List, activate the "Show Alphabet Tab" setting by clicking the mouse button to place a check mark in the box. Click again to remove the check and disable the setting.
- □ **To display the data tips** that appear as you hold the cursor over a button in you toolbar, activate the "Show Data Tips" setting by clicking the mouse button to place a check mark in the box. Click again to remove the check and disable the setting.
- □ **To display grid lines** on the Address List, click the mouse button to place a check mark in the box. Click again to remove the check and disable the setting.

The Name Field Sorting settings are used to indicate the method you want to use when sorting contact names. This can be either "Last/First," "First/Last," or "First/Middle/Last."

Select one of the three methods to be used when sorting your contacts by name. This setting can also be changed using the View item under the Address main menu. The remaining portion of this tab is used to control the information that displays on your Address List. This tab operates similarly to the Add Group tab. It is divided into two lists. The Available side lists the information available for display. The Displayed side lists the information that will appear on the Address List screen.

- □ To place Available data on your Address List screen, select the descriptive name from the Available list, then click on the right arrow symbol between the two lists. The item will appear in the Displayed list. Likewise, you can remove data from the Address List screen by selecting the item, then clicking on the left arrow symbol.
- The RESET button will clear the Selected list to reset your selections. The UP and DOWN buttons can be used to scroll through your list.
 - □ Once you have made all necessary adjustments to these options, save the data by activating the ok button.

DEFAULT DATA TAB

The Default Data tab is used to enter the data that will pre-populated when you create new contact records.

To access the Default Data tab:

Select the Options item from the Address main menu located at the top of the screen. The select the Default Data tab.

The Address Book Options dialog box will appear with the Default Data tab selected, as shown in the following figure.

Horse City	F			-8	Beset
Conpeny Ch	<.			-11	
21ate					
Horse Zip:		_			
Congeny Zip		-			
Country		_		1	
Conpeny	<u> </u>	_	_	-1	

Address Book Options Box Showing the Default Data Tab

- G Simply enter the appropriate information in each field that you would like to be pre-populated when creating new contacts. You can enter as much or as little data as desired. When you are finished, select the oκ button to save the information.
- The RESET button will clear the current settings to allow you to set new default settings.

Sorting Your Address Book

Calendar Creator offers several methods of sorting your Address Book. These are as follows:

- Use the Alphabet tab located to the left of your list (if you have this option enabled).
- Use the "Search Name" field located at the right corner of your list.
- Use the Active View indicator screen drop-down list.

- □ To use the Alphabet tab, simply select the beginning letter by which you want to sort (e.g., selecting S will display names such as Smith, Simon, Shelton, etc.). The arrow tabs at either end of the alphabetic tab are used to move up or down the tab. The ALL tab item will prompt the system to list all addresses in your list.
- □ **To use the "Search Name" field**, simply position the cursor in the field (located at the right corner of your Address List), and then enter one or more letters to refine your search.
- □ **To use the View indicator list**, select either the "Addresses and Group" item, "Addresses Only" item, "Groups Only" item, or one of the group names listed at the bottom of the drop-down list.

Searching Your Address Book

You can search your Address Book for specific information using one of the Find Address feature or the Query feature. The Find Address feature allows you to search using basic information. The Query feature allows you to refine your search by adding Search Filers. Each of these is discussed below.

□ **To use the Find Address feature**, select the Find Address item from the Address main menu.

The l	Find (dialog	box '	will	appear	and	resemble	the	figure	shown	below
1110 1	i ma '	unuiog	004	** 111	uppeur	unu	105011010	unc	inguio	5110 11 11	0010

Find			? ×
Eind What:			OK
<u>I</u> n Field:	E Field Centeire	•	Cancel
	Field Contains Match Case		<u>H</u> elp

Find Dialog Box

This field contains two fields and two toggle boxes. The "Find What" field is used to indicate the information you want to search for. The "In Field" field is used to specify the field by which you want to search. If you are unsure of the exact information that appears in the fields, you can check the "Field Contains" box to make the search less specific (i.e., you can search for partial information). If you want to match the case of the "Find What" item, check the MATCH CASE box. Enter your search criteria, then initiate the search by activating the ok button.

Your Address Book will be adjusted to display the appropriate information, if found.

To use the Query feature, select the Query item in the Address main menu.

The Search for Records dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Search for R	ecords			? ×
In <u>F</u> ield:	Company Addre	ess2 🔽	Field <u>C</u> ontains	OK
<u>S</u> earch For:		Γ	<u>M</u> atch Case	Cancel
Field Name	Filter	Match Ca	se 🔋 Field Co	ntains <u>A</u> dd Filter
				<u>R</u> emove
				Clear
				Clea <u>r</u> All
•				<u> </u>

Search for Records Dialog Box

The top portion of this box is similar to the Find dialog box. You enter the information you want to find, then specify the field where this information may be listed. The lower portion is used to refine your search by specifying several search criteria (or filters). Adding filters allows you to specify more than one "In Field" and "Search For" entries. Each time you enter the search criteria in these fields, you activate the ADD FILTER button. The search criteria becomes the filter information and it is placed in the filter list. This process can be repeated as many times as is necessary to apply as many filters as needed.

Letter your search criteria and any filters, then initiate the search by activating the oκ button.

Your Address Book will be adjusted to display the appropriate information, if found.

The REMOVE button will remove a search filter from the list. The CLEAR button will clear the selected item(s), and the REMOVE ALL button will remove all search filters listed.

Importing Files into Your Address Book

Calendar Creator allows you to import other address book files (*.ab5) or comma separated value (*.csv) files into your Address Book.

To import files into your Address Book:

- Select Import from the File menu. Then, select Address from the dropdown menu and select the file type to be imported (*.ab5 or *.csv).
- If an address book file is currently open when using the Import feature, the file being imported will merge with the file currently open, creating a single address book file when saved.

When importing (*.csv) files, the Import Fields dialog box will appear. This dialog is used to assign properties to each field being imported into the Address Book.

- □ Select the first checkbox to convert any special DOS-based characters that are contained in the file being imported.
- □ Select the second checkbox to have the first line of the file imported as a header.
- Assign each field in the imported file to an address book field by clicking on the column header labeled, "Unassigned," and select the Address Book field from the drop-down list. Then, click on the Oκ button.

Printing Your Calendar

Calendar Creator gives you more printing capabilities than ever! You can now print a professional looking calendar right at home by selecting one of the many calendar layouts offered by this new version of *Calendar Creator*. You can choose from among the following layout possibilities to create the calendar that's perfect for your needs.

- Print a single-page calendar.
- Print two or more calendars on one page.
- Print multiple calendars on double-sided pages.
- Print one calendar printed on multiple pages (for a poster-like calendar).
- Print multiple calendars in InstaBook[™] style.

You can also set up your printing options to include: pictures above, beside, behind, or inside your calendar. The possibilities are limited only by your imagination.

Because there are so many printing options, *Calendar Creator* provides a mechanism for verifying all user-defined print settings to ensure that the setting combinations coincide. For example, if you set your calendar size too large for the current page size setting, *Calendar Creator* will recognize the inconsistency and prompt you to change one of the settings. Likewise, if you specify to print on legal-size paper, but the printer tray contains letter-size paper, the software will alert you of the error. This will help you to save time and reduce the costly waste of paper.

Preparing to Print

Most simple print jobs can be handled using the default print settings. However, as you become familiar with the vast printing options available with *Calendar Creator*, you will want to utilize the options to produce highly sophisticated calendars.

The Print Layout dialog box is the main controller you will use during printing.

Select the Print Layout item from the File main menu located at the top of the screen.

The Print Layout dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.



Print Layout Dialog Box with Layout Tab Displayed

Print Layout

The Print Layout dialog box is comprised of four tabs: Layout, Page, Calendar, and Margins. The Layout tab is used to select the basic layout. The Page tab is used to select the page stock and size, as well as adjust the margins. The Calendar tab is used to select the number of calendars and pages that will be printed. And the Margins tab is used to control the calendar margins. Each of these tabs is discussed in the sections below.

LAYOUT TAB

The Layout tab (shown in the figure above) is used to select the basic layout of your calendar. This includes the layout (regular or InstaBook), the time span to be included in the printout, the orientation of the calendar(s) on the page, and binding margin setting.

The "Print Mode" field allows you to select between a Regular print mode and the InstaBook print mode. Based on your selection in this field, the "Current Layout" field below it will list your layout options. As you select one of these options, a preview of the page will appear in the Page Preview area.

When you are trying to determine whether to use Regular or InstaBook printing, think about how you want to use your calendar. InstaBook calendars are printed

double-sided with fold and cut lines that, when followed, can be assembled into a booklet bound by staples, comb binding, etc. If you don't want your calendar in this format, select the Regular printing option to produce a single-sided calendar that contains the specified number of calendars per page. You can also use this setting to print poster-size calendars.

In addition to these print layouts, you can select the Custom layout option (under the "Current Layout" drop-down list) to customize your layout setting.

The Time Slice options are used to indicate the time range to be included in the printed calendar. The "Start Date" field automatically adjusts to start date of the current calendar being used. This can be adjusted as needed. The "Periods" field is used to indicate the number of periods to print. A period is defined as the time span of the current calendar in view. For example, if you are viewing a multi-week calendar (e.g., 6 weeks), increasing the period to "2" will result in a 12-week calendar printout. Likewise, if you are using a 1-month calendar, increasing the period to "4" will result in a 4-month calendar printout. The "End Date" field is used to indicate the last date to include on the calendar. This field will automatically adjust according to the indicated period, but can be changed as needed.

The Page Orientation options allow you to arrange the calendar(s) in portrait or landscape position on the page(s).

The Binding Margin options all you to adjust the page margins to allow room for binding the calendar at the top or the side.

- Modify the Calendar Layout settings as desired. When you are finished, apply these settings by activating the ok button. You can save (and retrieve at any time) your new print settings, if desired. This is done by activating the SAVE button rather than the ok button, then entering the name in the Add New Print Layout dialog box that appears. This name will appear in the drop-down menu for the "Current Layout" field where it will remain until such time that it is deleted by activating the DELETE button beside the "Current Layout" field.
- It should be noted that the most recent print settings will remain as the default the next time the Print Layout dialog box is accessed. However, unless you save the settings, they will be replaced by the next layout settings.

PAGE TAB

The Page tab is used to select the paper stock and size, as well as to adjust the margins.

Select the Page tab from the Print Layout dialog box.

The Page tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

vox Per Calendar Margane	
Oraces Paper Stack	Page paview
Quarge Page See norwalk Sector Bage	
Page Margins	
Inc 0.50° 22	
Lat 0.50" #	
Bign 0.50" 🔠	

Print Layout Dialog Box with Page Tab Displayed

The "Choose Paper Stock" field is used to indicate the size of your paper. It operates in conjunction with the "Print Mode" and "Current Layout" settings on the Layout tab. That is, a default paper stock will be provided. However, this can be changed as needed. Doing so, will in turn change the "Current Layout" field on the Layout tab to "Custom."

To choose a predefined paper stock:

- Select the paper stock from the "Choose Paper Stock" drop-down list, then click on the ok button.
- If you have chosen an InstaBook layout from the Layout tab, the "Choose Paper Stock" field will be prepopulated with the paper stock that corresponds to the current layout.

If the paper stock you're using isn't provided as one of the predefined paper stocks, you can add the new paper stock to this list by activating the ADD button. This will produce the Add New Paper Stock dialog box where the new stock name and dimensions can be entered.

To add new paper stock to the "Choose Paper Stock" drop-down list:

Select the ADD button on the Page tab of the Print Layout box.

This will produce the Add New Paper Stock dialog box.

Add New Paper Stock	? ×
Paper Stock <u>N</u> ame	ОК
	Cancel
<u>W</u> idth <u>H</u> eight 8.50" <u>→</u> 11.00" <u>→</u>	
	Help

Add New Paper Stock Dialog Box

Enter the name or description of the paper in the "Paper Stock Name" field. Enter the width and height of the paper, then save the new paper information by clicking on the οκ button.

The paper stock will appear in the drop-down list until it is deleted. Alternatively, you can delete paper stock from this list by selecting the item, then clicking on the DELETE button.

If you don't want to add the new paper stock to the list, you can choose the "Change Paper Size Manually" option to adjust the width and/or height of the paper.

To set the paper size manually:

- □ Select the Change Paper Size Manually option, then enter the width and the height of the paper in the appropriate fields.
- When you manually set the paper size, the "Choose Paper Stock" field will be disabled and populated as "Custom." (See Printing on Custom Paper Sizes later in this chapter.)

CALENDAR TAB

The Calendar tab is used to select between calendar/page settings. You can determine how many calendars (on a multi-calendar printing task) should be printed on each page, how many pages a poster-size calendar should comprise, or the calendar size by manually setting the calendar width and height. Only one of these options can be selected at a time.

□ Select the Calendar tab from the Print Layout dialog box.

The Calendar tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

C Eslendara Par Page	
Acres 2	Page preview
Poges per Ealenda	
Acress 2	
Down 3	and the second
Set Size Manualy	
• Widh 197 2	
- Harris	

Print Layout Dialog Box with Calendar Tab Displayed

Use the "Calendars per Page" option when you are printing multiple calendars on one page. You can indicate the number of calendars to print in columns (down) and rows (rows). The size of each calendar will adjust according to the selected margins and paper stock.

Use the "Pages per Calendar" option when you are printing a calendar on multiple pages (a poster-size calendar).

Use the "Set Size Manually" option to customize the width and height of your calendar.

■ Modify the Calendar settings as desired. When you are finished, apply these settings by clicking on the ok button.

MARGINS

The Margins tab is used to set the margins surrounding the calendar(s) and to specify the point on the page where the first calendar will begin. This is useful when you are printing several calendars on one page; it will determine the amount of space between each calendar.

Select the Margins tab from the Print Layout dialog box.

The Margins tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Calendar Margini	Page perion
Joo 21 Botus 1.57	
Les 1.27 1	
Eight 0.25° 📩	
Top I DT 1	
Let FLIDY #	

Print Layout Dialog Box with Margins Tab Displayed

The Calendar Margins options are used to set the four margins bordering each calendar. They determine the amount of space between calendars when printing multiple calendars on one page.

The Calendar Origin options are used to specify the point on the page where the first calendar will begin printing. This point is based on the edge of the paper—not the calendar margin.

Modify the Margin settings as desired. When you are finished, apply these settings by clicking on the οκ button.

Once you have checked and modified the print layout settings, you can continue by either previewing the calendar using the Print Preview screen (discussed in the *Print Preview* section of this chapter), or by printing your calendar using the Print screen (or command).

Print Options

Once your print layout options have been established, the Print item in the File main menu can be used to initiate printing. You can also control various settings for the printer from this menu item.

□ Select the Print item from the File main menu located at the top of the screen, or activate the Print icon located in the main tool bar.

The Print dialog box will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

ame. HPLanetlet 451	Properties
ype: HPLaveslet 45i	
where: Wibliot_operations*	10.6.411
annent	
Double sided	Copies
Plint to Be	Mumber of gopies 11 📰
Show 'Caution: Pive' date	1

Print Dialog Box

This box is comprised of five tabs: Printing, Advanced, Trays, Regular, and InstaBook. Each of these tabs is discussed below.

PRINTING TAB

The Printing tab (shown in the figure above) is used to select the printer you are using as well as control its various properties. It is also used to control doublesided printing, print to a file, show the "Caution: Printing" dialog, and set the number of copies to be printed.

Select the name of your printer from the "Name" drop-down list. To add a printer that is not in this list, please refer to your printer's user documentation for details on setting its property options.

The "Double sided" option, when checked, will indicate to the software that the documents will be printed as a double-sided document.

The "Print to File" option, when checked, will indicate to the software that the information is to be stored to a specified file.

The "Show 'Caution: Print' dialog" option, when checked, will prompt the system to alert you for verification each time the printing queue is activated.

The "Number of Copies" field is used to set the default number of copies that will print with each print command.

■ Modify the Printing settings as desired. When you are finished, apply these settings by activating the ok button.

ADVANCED TAB

The Advanced tab is used to perform various advanced printing features, such as adding a cover page, inserting blank forms during printing, printing a picture, etc.

Select the Advanced tab from the Print dialog box item.

The Advanced tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

	Cover page			Dist	ve.
1	Blang komu	Forst belong	E-1	Forsi alter	Э
7	Print guerflow				
1	Frint in black and white		Print Eacon	g pictures	

Print Dialog Box with Advanced Tab Displayed

The "Cover Page" field can be marked to indicate that a cover page should be provided with the printout. The blank field beside the check box is used to indicate the location of the cover page text or graphic file. The BROWSE button can be used to search your files for the specific file.

The "Blank Page" field can be used to allow a specified number of blank page(s) to be inserted through the printer before and/or after each printed page.

"Print Overflow," when checked, will prompt the software to print the calendar information that doesn't fit in the allotted space.

"Print in black and white" prompts color printers to print a color document in black and white, which is useful for draft versions.

"Print Facing Pictures" will prompt the software to print any graphics that are programmed to appear opposite the calendar page.

- Facing pictures are added to your calendar using the View Properties item on the Calendar main menu.
- Modify the Advanced settings as desired. When you are finished, apply these settings by activating the ok button.

TRAYS TAB

The Trays tab is used to enter your printer's specifications. Once these settings have been input, they should not have to be adjusted unless you install a new printer.

□ Select the Trays tab from the Print dialog box item.

The Trays tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

npot Tray		Dubul Tray	
Load Paper Feed Guide		/F Face up	
F Face gain	C Side	C Face dong	
	1 04g	Landszape Rotation	
Feed Direction		(* Riotate jight	
F Head in F Head gut		C Rotate jelt	
Note: Laser pinters with paper satisfyes under the printer are usually head out		Note: Mest laser printees solate left. Mest infaint and dat matter perfers rotate light.	
	Tray Wiga	ed	

Print Dialog Box with Trays Tab Displayed

Refer to your printer's user manual for details on the specifications required by your printer.



You can use the Tray Wizard feature for assistance in making the necessary adjustments.

REGULAR TAB

The Regular tab is used to establish the specification when printing multiple calendars on one page, as well as when printing poster-type calendars.

Select the Regular tab from the Print dialog box item.

The Regular tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

Print		2 X
Printing Advanced Tray Duting Budes IF Dutined IF Dutined	Al Regular Instabook	
	Fors Pirt Dide	
OK	Cancel Save as Default Part Proview Hel	D I

Print Dialog Box with Regular Tab Displayed

This tab allows you to indicate how to format the cutting guides for a regularlayout document. It also is used to indicate the printing order of the calendars (either across or down).

INSTABOOK TAB

The InstaBook tab is used to determine the cutting and folding guides for InstaBook-type calendars.

Select the InstaBook tab from the Print dialog box item.

The InstaBook tab will appear and resemble the figure shown below.



Print Dialog Box with InstaBook Tab Displayed

Print Preview

Calendar Creator provides a print preview feature that can be used to view your calendars prior to printing them to examine the results of your layout setup. This feature works much like the print preview in most Windows-based applications.

Select the Print Preview item from the File main menu.

The Print Preview screen will appear and resemble the figure shown below.

	Octo	er 1997 9 Ranut			
(AND)	Made N	y Assur	r	P	
		0	10	11	

Print Preview Screen with Sample Layout

The buttons listed across the top of this sample layout allow you to perform the following functions:

- print the calendar(s)
- view the next page
- view the previous page
- zoom in to a particular area of the image
- zoom out to full view of the image
- close the preview
- Preview your calendar and make any necessary adjustments prior to printing by referring to the tabs previously discussed. When you are satisfied, close your preview screen by clicking on the cLOSE button.

Printing Your Calendar

Once you have made your print layout adjustments and any other necessary changes, you are ready to print your calendar.

To initiate printing:

Select the ok button on the Print Layout dialog box.

Printing on Custom Paper Sizes

Calendar Creator allows you to print to any size paper that your printer can accommodate. To set up printing on paper of a custom size, you must first configure your printer. (Please refer to your printer or Windows documentation for the proper procedure.) Once you have configured your printer to accept the custom paper size, you must now tell *Calendar Creator* the specifications of the custom paper you will be printing on.

If your printer's unprintable area is greater than the default page margin set by *Calendar Creator*, you will receive an error message and will be unable to print.

The Page Margin options are used to specify the four margins of your paper. As you adjust each margin, the Page preview will also adjust to show the changes. Consider the unprintable area of your printer when setting your page margins. You can check these values by accessing your printer's properties (see your printer or Windows documentation). If the printer's unprintable area is 1/8" for example, you must set the page margin to any value greater than 1/8".

Event List Printing

You can control the information shown on your Event List when printing, by adjusting the column headers in the Event List view. By adjusting the width of the columns you can select the size of the column when printed, or even remove the column so that it will not appear in the printout.

Address Book Printing

You can control the information shown on your Address Book when printing, by adjusting the column headers in the Address Book View. By adjusting the width of the columns you can select the size of the column when printed, or even remove the column so that it will not appear in the printout.

Printing Event Reports

When printing your Event Report, you can specify whether you would like to have the calendar title appear at the top of each page or on the first page only. To set this option, access the Layout Properties dialog box (see *Chapter 3, Formatting Features*), and select the Miscellaneous tab. To show the calendar title at the top of each printed page, select the "Show Title on Each Page" option. To have the title print only on the first page, leave this checkbox unmarked.

To print a 2-Column Event Report, select the Page Layout command under the File main menu. Under the Current Layout option, select Event Report 2-Column from the current layout list. Select any other print layout options you wish, then click on ok.

Print Wizard

Calendar Creator offers Print Wizard. It is a useful tool that assists you in setting up your print specifications. It takes you through a basic question and answer session to determine what type of calendar you want to produce. In essence, it steps you through the options that are listed on the tabs discussed in this chapter. Once you have completed the Print Wizard, you can save your print settings to be reapplied at any time.

You may want to use the Print Wizard feature to get started. Then, as you become more familiar with the unlimited printing options offered by *Calendar Creator*, you may want to get creative and try your own settings.

Print Wizard can be accessed by selecting the Print Wizard item from the File main menu located at the top of your screen.

Appendix

Troubleshooting

If you encounter problems or need assistance, please refer to Troubleshooting in the **Read Me** file on your *Calendar Creator* CD.

Try this first!

If you have problems running the program, try cleaning the CD. Gently remove any fingerprints and dust using a clean, soft, lint-free cloth dampened with water or a CD-cleaning solution. Avoid using material such as tissue, which may scratch the CD.

Technical Support

If you are unable to solve a problem, contact Technical Support at the following numbers/addresses.

Direct Telephone	1-423-670-2020			
Fax	1-423-670-2021			
Internet	support@learningco.com			
CompuServe	GO LEARNINGCO			
World Wide Web site	http://www.learningco.com			
Correspondence	The Learning Company Technical Support 9715 Parkside Drive Knoxville, TN 37922			

Before contacting Technical Support:

- Write down any error messages as they appeared on the screen.
- Be in front of your computer, if possible.
- Have your Windows installation disks or CD available.
- Have only Explorer running. Close any other running programs, including *Calendar Creator*. (See *Troubleshooting* in your CD booklet, for instructions on how to close running programs.)

Be sure to register this program so we can provide you with technical support and notify you of exciting new products as they become available.

Customer Service

We are proud of the special relationship we have with many satisfied customers who use our software. If you have a problem, question, or suggestion, please call our Customer Service Department at **800-227-5609** (U.S. only) or **617-494-1200** (outside the U.S.).

Damaged Disc Replacement Policy

The Learning Company will replace CDs that the user damages for a duplicating and handling fee. Return the damaged CD and a check for \$10 to the address below, marked Attention: CD Return Dept.

The Learning Company One Athenaeum Street Cambridge, MA 02142

Index

A

Active view selection 2.6 Add/remove pages 3.25 Adding a category 3.28, 4.3 a cell 3.7 a contact 5.2 a cover page 6.9 a filter 5.17 a function 3.15 a note 3.22 an event 4.10 styles to events 4.14 text 3.13 Address Book Details Business tab 5.7 Contact tab 5.3 Events tab 5.8 Home tab 5.6 Notes tab 5.9 Address Book Options Default Data tab 5.14 General tab 5.12 Address group 5.10 Adjusting the date 2.5 your margins 6.3 Alarms categories 4.5-4.6 launching an application 4.22 messages 4.22 sounds 4.22 Associating categories and calendars 4.9 contacts with a group 5.11 Attributes 4.2 Automatic dial 5.5 AutoRun 2.1 AutoSave 3.31

В

Background & border options 3.17 Background programs A.1 Browse directories 2.2 for folder 3.13 names list 5.14 picture files 4.7

С

Calendar properties 3.32 Calendar Type indicator 2.5 Calendar views. See Views Calendar Views tab 3.28 Categories tab 3.27 Cells 1.6, 3.7 Changing address book information 5.5 an alarm 4.26 calendar dates 3.21 calendar layout settings 6.3 contact or group information 5.11 the start day 3.26 Clip art 2.2, 3.11 Clip Art Properties dialog box 3.11 Color 3.19 Commands and controls 2.3 Contacts. See Participants Converting DOS files 2.10, 5.18 Creating a booklet 6.3 a multiple view file 3.26 a new calendar 3.1 an address list 5.1-5.2 an event list 4.1 groups 5.10 Custom address book 5.12 calendar 3.7 paper sizes 6.13 print layout 6.3 views 3.32 Customer Service A.2 Cutting and folding guides 6.12

D

Date objects 3.23 Default calendar view 2.2, 3.1 Deleting a category 4.3 a linked file 2.10 a QuickStyle 3.6 paper stock 6.5 Drawing objects 1.6, 3.7

Ε

E-mail information 5.4 Event add 4.9 alarms 4.21-4.23 categories 4.2 color 4.19 effects 4.15 notes 4.20 pictures 4.17 priority 4.11 query 4.24 text style 4.15 time periods 4.11 Event list 2.7, 4.1, 6.14 Event reports 4.25 Event tab 3.20 Exporting files 2.9 Extruded text 3.19

F

Facing Picture tab 3.30 File main menu 4.27 File sharing. See Network File types *.ab5 5.18 *.ca5 3.12 *.cc5 2.9, 3.31 *.csv 2.9, 5.18 Find. See Search Font dialog box 4.4 Formatting categories 4.4 notes 3.22 pre-formatted styles 3.5 tabs 3.7 Functions tab 4.19

G

General tab 3.30 Go to today's date 2.5 Graphics. *See* Pictures Group. *See* Address group

Н

Help 1.5

A - 4

I

Import Fields dialog box 2.10, 5.18 Importing files 2.8–2.9, 5.18 InstaBook, defined 6.2 Installing Calendar Creator 2.1–2.2

Κ

Keyboard symbols 1.5

L

Launch. See Alarms Layer order 3.24 Layout Object Properties 3.7–3.8 Line up objects 3.13 Linking files 2.8–2.10, 4.8 Local alarms, defined 4.27

Μ

Main menu 2.3 Main toolbar 2.3 Margins. *See* Print Layout: Page tab Messages. *See* Alarms Moveable cells 1.6 pictures/objects 3.8 text 3.15 Moving between pages 3.25 MS Exchange application 5.11 Multiple calendars 3.26 Multiple views 2.7

Ν

Naming a calendar file 3.27 Navigation 2.5 Network 2.8 New calendar 3.1 New QuickStyle (fig.) 3.6 Notes 3.22

0

Object tab 3.30 Open dialog box 4.7 Opening files 2.8

Ρ

Page orientation 6.3 Palm Pilot files 2.9 Paper stock 6.4 Participants 4.11 Phone 5.6. See also Automatic dial Pictures 3.7-3.11, 4.6 Pictures tab 3.20 Preferences 3.31 Preview. See View Pages Previous versions 2.8-2.9, 3.31 Print Advanced tab 6.9 InstaBook tab 6.12 Printing tab 6.8 Regular tab 6.11 Trays tab 6.10 Print Layout Calendar tab 6.5 Layout tab 6.2 Margins tab 6.6 Page tab 6.3 Print Preview 6.12-6.13 Printer specifications. See Print: Trays tab Printing address book 6.14 advanced features 6.9 background options 3.17 binding margin 6.3 border options 3.17 event lists 6.14 event reports 6.14 graphics 6.10 multiple calendars 6.5 pictures 6.1 poster-size calendars 6.3 setting margins 6.6 time span 6.2 Printing error. See Unprintable area Printing your calendar 6.13 Properties button 4.3

Q

Query 5.17 Querying your events 4.24 Quick Date 2.5, 4.10 QuickStyles 3.5, 3.27

R

Registering the program 2.2 Removing contacts 5.6, 5.8 event information 5.8 names 4.12, 5.11 search items 5.17 Repeat occurrence rule 3.21 Repeated events 4.10 Repeats dialog box 4.13 Repeats tab 3.20 Run dialog box 2.1

S

Sample Font dialog box 3.16 Saving a calendar file 3.31 Screen definitions 2.2 Script. See Font dialog box Search. See also Event: query address book 5.16 for records 5.17 Selecting a date 2.5 paper stock and size 6.3 the printer 6.8 your calendar view 3.2 Sending e-mail 5.12 Setting alarms 4.21 calendar margins 6.7 page margins 6.13 paper size 6.5 Shadow/highlight tab 3.19 Show toolbars 2.3 Size controls 3.12, 6.6 Sorting address book 5.15 address list 5.1 contacts 5.13 events 4.23 Sound. See Alarms Special effects 3.18 Split-screen view 2.7 Start date 4.10 Start-up 2.1 Styles applying to a categoy 4.3 calendar 3.15, 3.27 event 4.14 Submenus 2.3 System requirements 2.1

Т

Technical Support A.1 Text. *See* Adding: text Time period 2.5. *See also* Printing: time span Topic field 3.15 Transparent. *See* Color Tray Wizard 6.11 Troubleshooting A.1

U

Unprintable area 6.13 Updating files 2.10 Using the Scheduler 4.26

V

View, defined 3.1 View main menu 4.27 View Pages. *See* Print Preview View Properties 3.29 View type. *See* Active view selection Views address list 5.2 calendar 3.2–3.3 custom. *See* Custom: views

W

Web site 5.6 Week start day 3.26 Weekdays only 3.26 Window display 2.7